AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

THADDEUS STEVENS COLLEGE OF TECHNOLOGY

AND

PENNSYLVANIA STATE EDUCATION ASSOCIATION NATIONAL EDUCATION ASSOCIATION, LOCAL ASSOCIATION AT THADDEUS STEVENS COLLEGE OF TECHNOLOGY

Effective August 16, 2011, to August 15, 2015

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Article</u>

<u>Page #</u>

۰,

÷

.

PREAMBLE	2
ARTICLE 1 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	2.
ARTICLE 2 - RECOGNITION	$\overline{2}$
ARTICLE 3 - ASSOCIATION SECURITY	3
ARTICLE 4 – DUES DEDUCTION	3
ARTICLE 5 – WORK YEAR	A
ARTICLE 6 - SICK AND BEREAVEMENT LEAVE	6
ARTICLE 7 – LEAVES OF ABSENCE	9
ARTICLE 8 – MILITARY LEAVE	9
ARTICLE 9 – CIVIL LEAVE	9
ARTICLE 10 - PARENTAL LEAVE	10
ARTICLE 11 – SABBATICAL LEAVE	13
ARTICLE 12 – PERSONAL LEAVE DAYS	13
ARTICLE 13 - OUT-SERVICE TRAINING	14
ARTICLE 14 - LEAVES OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY	15
ARTICLE 15 - SALARIES	17
ARTICLE 16 – EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES	21
ARTICLE 17 – DISCHARGE, DEMOTION, SUSPENSION AND DISCIPLINE	21
ARTICLE 18 - GRIEVANCES AND ARBITRATION	21
ARTICLE 19 – TRAVEL EXPENSES	24
ARTICLE 20 – VACANCIES AND TRANSFERS	24
ARTICLE 21 – PERSONNEL FILES	25
ARTICLE 22 - PEACE AND STABILITY	
ARTICLE 23 – GENERAL PROVISIONS	26
ARTICLE 24 – MEET AND DISCUSS COMMITTEES	
ARTICLE 25 – HEALTH BENEFITS	27
ARTICLE 26 – LIFE INSURANCE	36
ARTICLE 27 – WORK RELATED INJURIES	37
ARTICLE 28 – UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION	38
ARTICLE 29 – CREDIT UNION	39
ARTICLE 30 - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	39
ARTICLE 31 – SENIORITY	40
ARTICLE 32 – ACADEMIC FREEDOM	41
ARTICLE 33 – TENURE	42
ARTICLE 34 – PEER EVALUATION	44
ARTICLE 35 – PROMOTION AND RANK	44
ARTICLE 36 – SUMMER EMPLOYMENT	44
ARTICLE 37 – FAMILY CARE LEAVE	45
ARTICLE 38 TERM OF AGREEMENT	47

APPENDIX A	
APPENDIX B	
APPENDIX C	
APPENDIX D (INTENTIONALLY OMITTED)	
APPENDIX E	51
APPENDIX F	
APPENDIX G	
APPENDIX H	54
APPENDIX I	55
APPENDIX J	62
APPENDIX K	63

;

PREAMBLE

.

This Agreement entered into by Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology, hereinafter referred to as the Employer, and the Pennsylvania State Education Association, National Education Association, Local Association at Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology, hereinafter referred to as the Association, has as its purpose the promotion of harmonious relations between the Employer and the Association; the establishment of an equitable and peaceful procedure for the resolution of differences; and the establishment of rates of pay, hours of work and other conditions of employment.

ARTICLE 1 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

<u>Section 1.</u> It is understood and agreed that the Employer, at its sound discretion, possesses the right, in accordance with applicable laws, to manage all operations including the direction of the working force and the right to plan, direct, and control the operation of all equipment and other property of the Commonwealth, except as modified by this Agreement.

Matters of inherent managerial policy are reserved exclusively to the Employer. These include but shall not be limited to such areas of discretion or policy as the functions and programs of the Commonwealth, standards of service, its overall budget, utilization of technology, the organizational structure and selection and direction of personnel

<u>Section 2.</u> The listing of specific rights in this Article is not intended to be nor should be considered restrictive or a waiver of any of the rights of management not listed and not specifically surrendered herein whether or not such rights have been exercised by the Employer in the past.

ARTICLE 2 RECOGNITION

<u>Section 1.</u> The Association is recognized as the exclusive representative for collective bargaining purposes for employees within the classifications established by a certification of the Pennsylvania Labor Relations Board, dated March 21, 1972, more specifically referred to as PERA-R-1363-C, and amended September 20, 2002 in PERA-U-02-411 E. For the purposes of this Agreement, the employees of the Scotland School for Veterans' Children and the Scranton State School for the Deaf are no longer part of the certification. The Association is comprised of only those certain employees within the classifications established above of the Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology.

<u>Section 2.</u> The term "employee" when used in this Agreement is defined as those persons falling within the classifications covered by the certification referred to in Section 1 of this Article.

ARTICLE 3 ASSOCIATION SECURITY

<u>Section 1.</u> Each employee who, on the effective date of this Agreement, is a member of the Association, and each employee who becomes a member after that date shall maintain his/her membership in the Association, provided that such employee may resign from the Association, in accordance with the following procedure:

a. The employee shall send a certified letter, return receipt requested, of resignation to the headquarters of the Pennsylvania State Education Association and a copy of the letter to his/her agency.

b. The letter shall be postmarked during the fifteen-day period prior to the expiration date of this Agreement and shall state that the employee is resigning his/her membership in the Association and where applicable is revoking his/her check-off authorization.

ļ

<u>Section 2.</u> The payment of dues and assessments while a member shall be the only requisite employment condition.

<u>Section 3.</u> The Employer and the Association hereby agree that all non-members of the Association shall be subject to a fair share fee as provided for in Act 84 of 1988 (Senate Bill 291) and any amendments thereto.

<u>Section 4.</u> The Employer shall furnish each new employee with a copy of this Agreement together with an authorization for dues payroll deduction, provided the Association has furnished the Employer with sufficient copies of the Agreement containing the authorization for dues deduction.

ARTICLE 4 DUES DEDUCTION

<u>Section 1.</u> The Employer agrees to deduct the Association bi-weekly membership dues and an annual assessment, if any, from the pay of those employees who individually request in writing that such deductions be made. There shall be 22 consecutive deductions, the first of which shall occur the first full bi-weekly pay of each academic year. The amounts to be deducted shall be certified to the Employer by the Association and the aggregate deductions of all employees shall be remitted together with an itemized statement to the Association by the last day of the succeeding month, after such deductions are made. This authorization shall be irrevocable during the term of this Agreement. When revoked by the employee in accordance with Article 3, the agency shall halt the check-off of dues effective the first full pay period following the expiration of this Agreement.

<u>Section 2.</u> The Employer further agrees to deduct a fair share fee bi-weekly from all employees in the bargaining unit who are not members of the Association.

{L0483677.2}

Authorization from non-members to deduct fair share fees shall not be required. The amounts to be deducted shall be certified to the Employer by the Association and the aggregate deductions of all employees shall be remitted together with an itemized statement to the Association by the last day of the succeeding month after such deductions are made.

Ì

<u>Section 3.</u> The Association shall indemnify and hold the Commonwealth harmless against any and all claims, suits, orders, or judgments brought or issued against the Commonwealth as a result of any action taken or not taken by the Commonwealth under the provisions of this Article.

ARTICLE 5 WORK YEAR

<u>Section 1.</u> During the term of this Agreement, the work year shall be 180 days including graduation, all scheduled activities at two open houses.

<u>Section 2.</u> The normal workload shall be as follows:

a. For all full-time academic faculty members, including faculty members formally identified as developmental faculty members, the normal workload for a semester shall be 15 credit hours. In addition, each academic faculty member shall be present for 10 posted office hours per week, which shall be used for advising and assisting students. Faculty office hour schedules must be approved in advance by the Academic Vice-President.

b. For all vocational faculty members, the normal workload for a semester shall be 22 classroom/lab contact hours per week. In addition, each vocational faculty member shall be present for three posted office hours per week. Vocational faculty may choose to work in cooperation with Academic faculty advisors with respect to advisement functions in their respective vocational/technical programs.

c. Any full-time salaried academic or vocational faculty member hired prior to January 1, 1991 will be grandfathered on an 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday schedule. Any faculty member who is hired on or after January 1, 1991 may be scheduled during any 8 contiguous hours between 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. Monday through Thursday and 7:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Friday.

d. Academic faculty members, vocational faculty members and developmental faculty members shall participate in up to two committees (and all related work associated with the committees) per faculty member. Faculty members shall sign up for their preferred committee(s). The College may assign a faculty member to a committee if the faculty member fails to sign up for a committee or if the committee for which the faculty member has signed up for is already fully staffed (as jointly determined by the Union and the College). Faculty members taking part in "high priority" committees shall be required to participate in only one committee. High priority committees include, but are not limited to:

Faculty Senate Curriculum Committee Academic Policies and Standards Assessment Committee Faculty Budget and Tech Middle States Self Study Periodic Review Report Subcommittee Program Self Study, every 5 years

Faculty members taking part in "low priority" committees shall be required to participate in two committees. Low priority committees include, but are not limited to:

Search Committee College approved Ad Hoc Committee Human Relations Committee Strategic Planning Committee Facility Master Plan Committee Open House Planning Committee Homecoming Committee At-Risk Student Committee Institutional Safety Committee

The College reserves the right to implement new committees; the parties shall jointly assign a priority level to any new committees. The College shall determine the required goals and missions for or of a committee. The nature of the committee shall determine whether the committee meets before, during and/or after the scheduled school semester (e.g., Middle States) and the committee shall determine its own schedule. A faculty member may be subject to discipline for failure to attend committee meetings and/or participate in the faculty member's assigned committee duties.

During the academic year, the College shall reserve Wednesdays, from 11:30 a.m. to 12:30 p.m., as a designated time for committee meetings. This reserved period of time notwithstanding, committees, at the discretion of the members, shall be permitted to meet at any time.

e. Limited Term Instructors

(1) Faculty members on approved sabbatical leave or anticipated to be on approved leave in excess of 45 working days shall be replaced by limited term instructors. Limited term instructors must satisfy all of the College's degree and certification requirements for the course or courses for which they have been hired to teach.

(2) An employee hired pursuant to Section 2(e), herein, who is scheduled to, and actually works, three or more days per week in the same assignment for 45 or more consecutive scheduled days shall be considered a limited term instructor. Except as modified by Section 3, herein, the provisions of the within collective bargaining agreement shall apply to limited term instructors.

(3) An employee hired pursuant to Section 2(e), herein, who is scheduled to, and actually works, less than 45 consecutively scheduled days shall be considered a short term instructor. Short term instructors shall not be considered to be members of the bargaining unit and the terms of the within collective bargaining agreement shall not apply to them.

(4) Limited term instructors shall be paid at the overload rate of pay applicable to regular full time faculty members. Short term instructors shall be paid at the rate of pay applicable to adjunct instructors.

ARTICLE 6 SICK AND BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

<u>Section 1.</u> Full-time employees shall be allowed 10 days of sick leave for each academic year. Sick leave shall be earned by an employee for any month in which the employee is in an active pay status for ten or more working days. Employees shall be eligible to take such leave after 30 days of service with the Employer. A sick or bereavement day shall be defined as for every hour of scheduled contact or office hour an employee is on sick or bereavement leave, the employee will be charged with 1.4 hours of leave.

<u>Section 2.</u> Employees shall earn sick leave from their date of hire and there will be no limit on the amount of sick leave an employee may accumulate.

<u>Section 3.</u> A doctor's certificate is required for an absence from work due to sickness for three or more consecutive days. For absences of less than three days, a doctor's certificate may be required where the Employer has reason to believe that the employee is abusing his/her sick leave privileges.

<u>Section 4.</u> Where sickness in the immediate family requires the employee's absence from work, employees may use not more than five days of such sick leave entitlement in each academic year for that purpose. Immediate family for the purpose of this Section is defined as the following persons: husband, wife, child, step-child, foster child, parent, brother or sister of the employee. The Employer may require proof of such family sickness in accordance with Section 3 above.

<u>Section 5.</u> Where a family member's serious health condition requires the employee's absence from work beyond 20 days in an academic year, permanent employees with at least one year of service may use accrued sick leave, in addition to that provided by Section 4 above.

a. Employees who meet the eligibility criteria in b. through e. below may use accrued sick leave in accordance with the following schedule:

Leave Service Credit	Sick Family Allowance
Over 1 year to 3 years	Up to 7 additional days
Over 3 years to 15 years	Up to 15 additional days

{L0483677.2}

Over 15 years to 25 years	Up to 20 additional days
Over 25 years	Up to 26 additional days

b. During the initial 20 days of absence, paid personal leave and/or unpaid leave shall be used and may include leave provided under Section 4 above. The additional sick family leave allowance must be used prospectively, and may not be retroactively charged for any of the initial 20 days. A separate 20 day requirement must be met for each different serious health condition and/or family member and for each academic year, even if not all of the additional days were used during the previous academic year.

c. The initial 20 days of absence may be accumulated and the additional leave may be used on an intermittent basis.

d. Proof of the family member's serious health condition as defined by the Family and Medical Leave Act must be provided on the Commonwealth's Serious Health Condition Certification form. Proof may be required for each absence during the 20 day period and subsequent additional sick family leave period.

e. Family member for the purpose of this Section is defined as the following persons: husband, wife, child, step-child, foster child, or parent of the employee or any other person qualifying as a dependent under IRS eligibility criteria.

f. Effective as soon as practically and legally possible, the Commonwealth will adopt a tax-qualified Leave Payout Plan. All employees who attain age 55 before or during the calendar year they separate from service after adoption of the Leave Payout Plan shall have the leave payouts otherwise payable for accumulated and unused Personal Leave and Sick Leave, up to the maximum allowable by law, deposited in an account in the employee's name, provided however that if the total amount of leave payout is \$5000 or less, this amount shall be paid to the employee in cash. Amounts in excess of the maximum allowable amount will be paid to the employee in cash.

<u>Section 6.</u> An employee may use up to five days of leave for the death of a parent, spouse, child, brother, sister, step-parent, or step-child, and up to three days of leave for the death of a grandparent, step-grandparent, grandchild, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, step-grandchild, parent-in-law, grandparent-in-law, aunt, uncle, foster child, step-sister, step-brother, or any other near relative who resides in the same household or any person with whom the employee has made his/her home.

The first three days of leave for bereavement in each academic year shall be charged to bereavement leave. Bereavement leave shall be non-cumulative from academic year to academic year. Any additional leave for bereavement under this Section shall be charged to sick leave.

Section 7. Part-time employees shall be entitled to sick leave on a pro-rata basis.

<u>Section 8.</u> a. Employees who retire shall be paid for their accumulated unused sick leave in accordance with the schedule below if they retire under the conditions set forth in Subsection b.

1.1.1

Days Available at <u>Retirement</u>	Percentage <u>Buy-Out</u>	Maximum <u>Days</u>
0-100	30%	30
101-200	40%	80
201-300	50%	150
Over 300 (in last year of employment	100% of days over 300	10

- b. Eligibility for payment of benefits under Subsection a. is as follows:
 - (1) Superannuation retirement with at least five years of credited service in the State and/or Public School Retirement Systems. For purposes of this Subsection, superannuation under TIAA-CREF shall be 60 years of age with at least five years of state and/or public school service, or
 - (2) Disability retirement which requires at least five years of credited service in the State and/or Public School Retirement Systems. For purposes of this Subsection, a retirement under TIAA-CREF shall be considered disability if the retiree is found eligible using the procedure established in Appendix J or
 - (3) Other retirement, including retirement under TIAA-CREF, with at least 25 years of credited service in the State and/or Public School Retirement Systems.
- c. Such employees shall not be paid for part days of accumulated sick leave.

d. None of the benefits provided for in this Article are to b construed as payable as a death benefit.

e. No payments under this Section shall be construed to add to the credited service of the retiring member or to the retirement covered compensation of the member.

<u>Section 9.</u> Permanent employees who have one or more years of service since their last date of hire may anticipate sick leave to which they become entitled during the then current academic year unless the Employer has reason to believe that the employee has been abusing his/her sick leave privileges. Permanent employees with less than one year of service since their last date of hire may not anticipate sick leave.

ARTICLE 7 LEAVES OF ABSENCE

<u>Section 1.</u> Employees shall be eligible for paid or unpaid leaves of absence after 30 days of service with the Employer.

<u>Section 2.</u> All time that an employee is absent from work shall either be appropriately charged or by mutual agreement between the Employer and the employee be made up by the employee.

<u>Section 3.</u> All requests for leave must be submitted in writing to the employee's immediate supervisor and shall be answered in writing promptly. Requests for emergency type leaves shall be answered before the end of the day on which the request is made. Except for such emergency type leaves, the time when leave is taken is within the discretion of the Employer.

Requests for any type of leave to which an employee is entitled under the Agreement and which is not to exceed one month shall be answered by the Employer within five days. If the requested leave is in excess of one month, the requests shall be answered within ten days, except in the case of requests for sabbatical leave, which will be administered in accordance with Section 2 of Article 11, Sabbatical Leave.

Section 4. Leave for Association Business

One delegate, each year, shall be entitled to two days paid leave for Association business. An employee elected to officership of PSEA affiliates shall be entitled to two days additional paid leave. The local Association of the Pennsylvania State Education Association shall reimburse the Employer for substitute teachers.

Section 5. Partial and Full Day Closings

The Employer agrees to abide by the provisions of Management Directive 530, as amended.

ARTICLE 8 MILITARY LEAVE

Employees shall be eligible for military leave as provided by Title 38, U.S. Code and Sections 8.71-8.72 and 8.131 through 8.138 of the Commonwealth's Personnel Rules, including amendments. The Employer agrees to provide the employee representative with a copy of any amendment that occurs to the above-noted provisions during the term of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 9 CIVIL LEAVE

<u>Section 1.</u> Permanent employees who have not volunteered for jury duty and are not a party in a civil or criminal court proceeding but are subpoenaed as a witness to attend such a court proceeding, shall be granted leaves with pay while attending court. Evidence of such duty in the form of a subpoena or other written notification shall be presented to the employee's immediate supervisor as far in advance as practicable.

<u>Section 2.</u> Permanent employees who are subpoenaed as witnesses or who are parties in the following administrative hearings shall be granted leave with pay while attending such hearings: Unemployment Compensation Board of Review Referee, Workers' Compensation Judge, Workers' Compensation Appeal Board, State Civil Service Commission and Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission. Evidence of such duty in the form of a subpoena or other written notification shall be presented to the employee's immediate supervisor as far in advance as practicable.

<u>Section 3.</u> The term "court" as used in this Article is intended to mean only the following courts: Minor Judiciary Court, Courts of Common Pleas, Commonwealth Court and the United States District Court.

<u>Section 4.</u> a. Permanent employees, while performing firefighting duties, civil air patrol duties or emergency management rescue work during a fire, flood, hurricane or other disaster, shall be granted leave with pay subject to management's responsibility to maintain efficient operations.

b. Volunteer participation in firefighting activities, civil air patrol duties or emergency management rescue work shall require the prior approval of the agency head. Employees absent from work for reasons under Subsection a. of this Section shall be required to obtain a written statement from the fire company, forest unit, emergency management agency, or other organization with which they served, certifying a to their activities during the period of absence.

ARTICLE 10 PARENTAL LEAVE

Employees shall be eligible for parental leave as follows:

Section 1. General

a. After completing one work year of service, all permanent employees of the Employer who become parents through childbirth or formal adoption or placement of a child with an employee for foster care shall be granted up to six months of parental leave without pay with benefits upon request, on a rolling twelve month year basis, provided the employee has at least 1250 hours of work time within the twelve months preceding the commencement of the leave. In accordance with the provisions of the Family Medical Leave Act, permanent, full-time employees are deemed to meet the 1250 hour test unless the Employer can clearly demonstrate that the employee did not work 1250 hours during the previous twelve months in which case, the

{L0483677.2}

employee would not be eligible for FMLA leave. Leave under this Section may be approved on an intermittent or reduced-time basis during the first twelve weeks of absence. After twelve weeks of absence, whether taken intermittently, on a reduced-time basis, or continuously subsequent leaves in the rolling twelve month year shall not be approved for periods less than two consecutive weeks.

b. One aggregate six month entitlement of leave without pay with benefits will be provided for parental leave without pay used under Section 1.a., sick leave without pay used under Article 14, Section 3.a., and family care leave without pay used under Article 35, Section 1. Leave used under these Articles will be deducted from the six month entitlement and run concurrently.

c. After the employee has used an aggregate of six months of leave without pay with benefits under this Section, Article 14, Section 3.a., and/or Article 38, Section 1, the Employer is not required to grant subsequent leave without pay with benefits until such time that the employee again becomes eligible for some portion of the six month entitlement under the rolling twelve month year, provided that the employee has at least 1250 hours of work time within the twelve month period preceding commencement of the leave.

d. Upon request of the employee, an extension of up to an additional six months of leave without pay shall be granted. The extension shall be without benefits and shall be contiguous to the termination of the initial six months of leave without pay with benefits. It shall not be used on an intermittent or reduced-time basis.

e. The continuation of benefits under this Section is subject to the employee's payment of any required employee contribution under Article 25, Section 3.

Section 2. Granting Leave

a. An employee shall submit written notification to the immediate supervisor, stating the anticipated duration of the leave, at least two weeks in advance if circumstances permit. Parental leaves shall begin whenever employees request on or after the birth, adoption or foster care placement. However, it may be used prior to the date of custody or placement when required for adoption or placement to proceed. No parental leave shall be granted beyond one year from the date or birth or of assuming custody of an adopted child or of placement of a foster child.

b. In no case shall an employee be required to leave prior to parental leave unless she can no longer satisfactorily perform the duties of her position.

c. During the first six months of absence under Section 1.a. of this Article, the duties of the employee's position shall either be performed by remaining staff and the position kept vacant or they shall be performed by a substitute employee.

Section 3. Reemployment

{L0483677.2}

a. During the first six months of absence under Section 1.a. of this Article, an employee shall have the right to return to the same position in the same classification held before going on parental leave, or to an equivalent position with regard to pay and skill.

During any extension period, under Section 1.d. of this Article, the employee, upon written request to return to work, shall be offered a position in the same classification for which a vacancy exists and which the agency intends to fill. If such a position is not available, the employee shall be offered, during the remainder of the six-month period, any position in the same classification or a position previously held, within the same geographical/organizational limitation for which a vacancy exists and which the agency intends to fill. If the employee refuses an offer of a position in the same classification, the employee's rights under this Section shall terminate. If the employee accepts a position previously held, the employee will be offered a position in the same classification if there is a vacancy in that classification during the remainder of the six-month period, provided the agency intends to fill the position.

b. The employee's anniversary date shall be extended in accordance with the provisions of the Commonwealth's Personnel Rules (relating to leave without pay).

Section 4. Seniority Rights

Upon return from parental leave, an employee shall retain all seniority and pension rights that had accrued up to and during the time of leave.

Section 5. Sick, Personal and Compensatory Leave

An employee shall be required to use all accrued paid sick leave for the period that she is unable to work as certified by a physician upon commencement of parental leave without pay. Such sick leave used will run concurrently with and reduce the six month entitlement to leave without pay with benefits. Employees shall not be required to use personal or compensatory leave upon the commencement of leave without pay; however, if personal leave is used, it also will run concurrently with and reduce such entitlement. Unused leave shall be carried over until return. An employee shall not earn sick or personal leave while on parental leave without pay.

Section 6. Benefits

College payments toward coverage for health benefits and state-paid coverage for life insurance provided in Articles 25 and 26 will continue for the period of time the employee is on parental leave without pay with benefits under Section 1.a. of this Article.

<u>Section 7.</u> Guidelines established by the Secretary of Administration regarding parental leave are published through the Directives Management System (Reference Management Directive 520.2). Guidelines regarding State-paid benefits while on parental leave are published through the Directives Management System (Reference Management Directive 530.4).

<u>Section 8.</u> It is understood by both parties that the provisions of this Article are consistent with the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act, 43 P.S. Section 951 et seq. and the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, 29 USC Sections 2601 et seq.

ARTICLE 11 SABBATICAL LEAVE

Section 1. In accordance with the Public School Code of 1949, Sabbatical Leaves of Absence, 24 P.S. § 11-1166 and 24 P.S. § 11-2665.1, an employee may, subject to the approval of the Employer, be granted a leave of absence for restoration of health, study, travel or other appropriate purposes.

<u>Section 2.</u> Under normal circumstances applications for sabbatical leave shall be made in accordance with the following procedure. The application for sabbatical leave should be received by the institution no later than December 31 in the academic year prior to the start of the academic year during which the sabbatical leave is sought. Requests for sabbatical leave shall be answered within 10 work days of December 31 by the President with all other statutory answers acted on within three months. In no event shall an application be denied as untimely submitted or a sabbatical leave be refused for the current or prospective academic year where the statutory minimum number of sabbatical leaves has not yet been granted even though that application was received after December 31 of the academic year prior to the academic year for which the sabbatical leave is being sought.

ARTICLE 12 PERSONAL LEAVE DAYS

Employees shall be eligible for three personal leave days without loss of pay, during each academic year, which may be used for any purpose at the discretion of the employee. An employee planning to use a personal day shall notify his/her immediate supervisor at least two days in advance of his/her absence. No more than two employees shall be absent on the same day unless approved by the President.

In case of emergency, the requirement of two days advance notice may be waived at the discretion of the President. Such waiver of notice shall not be unreasonably denied.

Employees may accumulate unused personal leave to a maximum of three days. Any unused personal leave in excess of three days will be transferred to the employee's sick leave balance.

Effective as soon as practically and legally possible thereafter, the Commonwealth will adopt a tax-qualified Leave Payout Plan. All employees who attain age 55 before or during the calendar year they separate from service after adoption of the Leave Payout Plan shall have the leave payouts otherwise payable for accumulated and unused Personal Leave and Sick Leave, up to the maximum allowable by law, deposited in an account in the employee's name, provided however that if the total amount of leave payout is \$5000 or less, this amount shall be paid to the employee in cash. Amounts in excess of the maximum allowable amount will be paid to the employee in cash.

ARTICLE 13 OUT-SERVICE TRAINING

<u>Section 1.</u> In accordance with the Commonwealth's Personnel Rules, Chapter 11, employees shall, subject to the approval of the President, be granted educational leave with pay to attend professional conferences, participate in training courses and sessions which are related to their work and engage in other similar job related activities. This Section is not applicable to organization or preparation for collective bargaining or any business of the Association that deals with collective bargaining.

<u>Section 2.</u> Accredited academic courses, if feasible, will be scheduled during non-working hours and will be limited to a maximum of 12 credit hours in any continuous 12 month period. Such 12 month periods shall coincide with the academic year. Reimbursement for such courses shall be in accordance with past practice.

a. The Employer agrees to continue the tuition reimbursement fund to reimburse full-time employees in this bargaining unit for the successful completion of accredited academic or vocational courses which would enable professional employees to maintain or improve skills required in performing their current job duties. The fund will also reimburse vocational instructors for the successful completion of non-accredited vocational training/courses which would enable these employees to maintain or improve skills required in performing their current job duties. The amount available in the tuition reimbursement fund will be \$20,000.00 for each contract year.

b. Tuition reimbursement requests will be approved in the following manner:

(1) The reimbursement rate for accredited academic or vocational courses will be the prevailing per credit rate charged by the Graduate Schools in the State System of Higher Education. The reimbursement rate for non-accredited vocational courses will be 100% of the course cost.

(2) Reimbursement will be made for courses which are approved in advance by the President and will be in accordance with procedures established through the Directives Management System. The Employer will respond to requests for approval of courses at the local level within 15 working days from the date all required employee forms have been received by the Employer.

(3) Reimbursement for accredited academic or vocational courses will be contingent upon successful completion of the course (attainment of the grade of "C" or better). For non-accredited vocational courses, reimbursement is contingent upon presentation of a certification of completion. Employees who terminate employment before the end of a course will not be eligible for reimbursement.

(4) The Employer shall accept applications for tuition reimbursement based on the criteria set forth above until such time as the fund set aside for this purpose is depleted. In the event the entire amount budgeted for tuition reimbursement is not used for this purpose in any contract year, reallocation of these funds shall be at the sole discretion of the Employer.

(5) Each employee shall, in the first instance, be reimbursed for no more than six credits per academic year. If any tuition reimbursement funds are still available after April 15, the Employer may make additional reimbursements up to a total of twelve credits per employee.

<u>Section 3.</u> When part-time out-service training as defined in Sections 1 and 2 above occurs during regular work hours of an employee, the agency may grant up to a maximum of 20 days of educational leave in any calendar year for this purpose.

ARTICLE 14 LEAVES OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY

Section 1. Leaves for PSEA Service

Employees who are elected or appointed full-time officials or representatives of PSEA shall, at the written request of the employee, submitted not less than 60 days prior to the start of a term, be granted leaves without pay for the maximum term of office, not to exceed three years. Such leaves may be renewed or extended by the written mutual consent of PSEA and the Employer. In no event shall more than one employee from each school be on such leave at any one time.

Section 2. Miscellaneous Leave Without Pay

Employees may be granted leave without pay at the sole discretion of the Employer for any reason for a period not to exceed two years which may be extended at the discretion of the Employer for an additional two-year period. Such leave shall not be unreasonably denied.

<u>Section 3.</u> After completing one work year of service, permanent employees shall be granted, upon written request, up to six months of sick leave without pay with benefits, on a rolling twelve month year basis, provided the employee has at least 1250 hours of work time within the twelve months preceding the commencement of the leave. In accordance with the provisions of the Family Medical Leave Act, permanent, full-time employees are deemed to meet the 1250 hour test unless the Employer can clearly demonstrate that the employee did not work 1250 hours during the previous twelve months in which case, the employee would not be eligible got FMLA leave. If the illness

or disability is due to a serious health condition as defined by the Family and Medical Leave Act, leave shall be granted for less than two consecutive weeks. The request, which shall be submitted in advance of the leave if circumstances permit, shall include proof of illness or disability in the form of a doctor's certificate which shall state a prognosis and expected date of return. If requested and properly documented as medically necessary, leave under this Section shall be approved on an intermittent or reduced-time basis during the first twelve weeks of absence per rolling twelve month year. After twelve weeks of absence, whether taken intermittently, on a reduced-time basis, or continuously, subsequent leaves in the rolling year shall not be approved for periods of less than two consecutive weeks.

a. Employees shall be required to use all accrued paid sick leave upon commencement of sick leave without pay. Such sick leave used will run concurrently with and reduce the six month entitlement to leave without pay with benefits. Employees shall not be required to use annual, personal or compensatory leave upon the commencement of sick leave without pay; however, if annual, personal or compensatory leave is used, it also will run concurrently with and reduce such entitlement.

b. One aggregate six month entitlement of leave without pay with benefits will be provided for sick leave without pay used under this Section, parental leave without pay used under Article 10, Section 1.a., and family care leave without pay used under Article 38, Section 1. Leave used under these Articles will be deducted from the six month entitlement and run concurrently.

c. After the employee has used an aggregate of six months of leave without pay with benefits under this Section, Article 10, Section 1.a., and/or Article 38, Section 1, the Employer is not required to grant subsequent leave without pay with benefits until such time that the employee again becomes eligible for some portion of the six month entitlement under the rolling twelve month year, provided that the employee has 1250 hours of work time within the twelve month period preceding commencement of the leave.

d. The continuation of benefits under this Section is subject to the employee's payment of any required employee contribution under Article 25, Section 3.

e. This Section shall not apply to a work-related injury.

<u>Section 4.</u> Upon request of the employee, an extension of up to an additional six months of leave without pay shall be granted provided the employee provides proof of continuing illness or disability in the form of a doctor's certificate which shall state a prognosis and expected date of return. The extension shall be without benefits and shall be contiguous to the termination of the initial six months of leave without pay with benefits. It shall not be used on an intermittent or reduced-time basis. Upon certification from the employee's doctor that the employee is able to return to work, the employee shall be offered a position in the same classification and seniority unit for which a vacancy exists and which the agency intends to fill. If such a position is not available, the employee shall be offered, during the remainder of the six-month period, any position in the same classification or a position previously held, within the same geographical/organizational limitation as the seniority unit, for which a vacancy exists and which the agency intends to fill. If the employee refuses an offer of a position in the same classification, the employee's rights under this Section shall terminate. If the employee accepts a position previously held, the employee will be offered a position in the same classification if there is a vacancy in that classification during the remainder of the six-month period in the seniority unit, provided the agency intends to fill the position.

This Section shall not apply to a work-related injury.

<u>Section 5.</u> Upon the expiration of any approved leave of absence without pay, except as provided in Section 4 above, Article 10, Section 3, and in Article 38, Section 5, the employee is entitled to return to a position in the same or equivalent classification within the agency subject to the furlough provisions of Article 31, Seniority.

<u>Section 6.</u> It is understood by both parties that the provisions of Sections 3, 4 and 5 are consistent with the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, 29 U.S.C. Sections 2601, et seq.

<u>Section 7</u>. State payments toward coverage for health benefits and state-paid coverage for life insurance as provided in Articles 25 and 26 will continue for the period of time the employee is on sick leave without pay with benefits under Section 3 of this Article.

<u>Section 8</u>. Sections 3 through 7 of this Article become effective January 1, 2009. Absences occurring before January 1, 2009 shall be covered by the provisions of Article 14, Leaves of Absence Without Pay, of the Agreement between the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and PSEA, NEA, Local Association at Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology effective August 16, 2004 through August 15, 2007. Absences on December 31, 2008, and continuing on or after January 1, 2009, shall remain covered by the provisions of the August 16, 2004 through August 15, 2007 Agreement until those benefits are exhausted or the employee returns to work, whichever occurs first.

ARTICLE 15 SALARIES

Section 1. Effective August 16, 2011, employees will continue to be paid in accordance with the ED Pay Schedule as reflected in Appendix A.

<u>Section 2.</u> Effective August 16, 2013, each permanent full-time employee covered by this Agreement who is in an active pay status shall receive a general pay increase of 1%. This general pay increase is reflected in Appendix B.

<u>Section 3.</u> Effective August 16, 2014, each permanent full-time employee covered by this Agreement who is in an active pay status shall receive a general pay increase of 3/4%. This general pay increase is reflected in Appendix C.

<u>Section 4.</u> a. An employee who has been employed continuously with the Commonwealth since April 1, 2012 and whose salary is below the maximum Step of the appropriate column for his/her Educational Level shall receive a service increment of one step, or the amount necessary to reach the maximum, whichever is lesser, effective on the first day of the first full pay period in April, 2013. The criteria for Education Levels is defined by attached Appendix H.

b. An employee who has been employed continuously with the Commonwealth since April 1, 2013 and whose salary is below the maximum Step of the appropriate column for his/her Educational Level shall receive a service increment of one step, or the amount necessary to reach the maximum, whichever is lesser, effective on the first day of the first full pay period in April, 2014.

1.

c. During the term of this Agreement, employees who are at or above the maximum of their pay scale group at the time they become eligible for an annual service increment as outlined in subsections a. and b. above shall receive the annual amount of a two and one-quarter percent (2.25%) increase in the form of a one-time cash payment rounded to the nearest dollar.

d. Employees who were at or above the maximum step of their Educational Level at the time they were eligible for the service increments as outlined in subsections a., and b. above shall receive the annual amount of a two and one-quarter percent (2.25%) increase in the form of a one-time cash payment rounded to the nearest dollar on the first day of the first full pay period in January, 2015 and April, 2015.

e. Employees who received the one-step service increment outlined in subsection a. above but were at or above the maximum step of their Educational Level at the time they were eligible for a service increment as outlined in subsection b. above shall receive the annual amount of a two and one-quarter percent (2.25%) increase in the form of a one-time cash payment rounded to the nearest dollar on the first day of the first full pay period in April, 2015.

f. The cash payments provided for in this Section shall not be added to the employee's base salary. Further, an employee's performance rating shall not be used in determining entitlement to such increments. The increment shall be granted solely on the basis of service.

g. All general pay increases that coincide with the commencement of the school year shall be effective the first full pay period of the school year.

<u>Section 5.</u> a. Employees hired on or after August 11, 1990 shall be placed on the salary schedules based on their complete years of experience and educational background. In no case will a newly hired employee be placed higher on the pay schedule than an employee already on the schedule with equal education and equal or more experience. For this purpose, one step will be granted for each year of academic experience or each two years of vocational experience. An employee who earns

sufficient credits or a Master's Degree during the academic year to make him/her eligible for a higher salary shall have his/her salary increased by moving to the appropriate salary column at the beginning of the next academic term or semester.

b. In order for an employee to become eligible for a salary increase or a horizontal move along the salary schedule, they first must have earned the minimum number of approved credits. A Master's Degree or its equivalent must be earned with approved graduate level credits. Horizontal movement on the salary schedule beyond the Master's Degree will only be based upon credits earned subsequent to the entitlement of the Master's Degree or its equivalent. For purposes of movement on the salary schedule beyond the Master's Degree, an employee may only use up to six in-service credits. In addition, 30 clock hours of course work in technologies, including workshops and seminars, will equal one credit hour provided the employee furnishes proof of attendance in the form of a certificate or letter of attendance from the training agency.

<u>Section 6.</u> An employee on educational leave or leave without pay shall, upon return to active status, be placed on the pay schedule by the President in accordance with Section 6.a. and shall be entitled to the annual service increments or pro-rated cash payments provided for in Section 5 of this Article, where applicable.

* ----

ł

<u>Section 7.</u> The salaries of employees shall be paid bi-weekly. In the event the payday occurs on a holiday, the preceding day shall be the payday.

<u>Section 8.</u> An employee may elect to receive his/her academic annual salary over 22 or 26 pay periods.

<u>Section 9.</u> If more than three preparations are assigned to an academic instructor, the Commonwealth will pay \$400.00 for each discrete course title and number over three.

Section 10.

a. All full-time instructor positions as of August 2012, will not be permanently replaced with adjunct instructors, however, all new classes, positions and programs may be filled with either full-time instructors or adjunct instructors using the following procedure:

(i) qualified full-time faculty members shall be given the first opportunity to fill adjunct teaching positions. If the College determines that there are no qualified full-time faculty members available for any given course, the College may fill the position with adjunct instructors. A full-time faculty member may teach up to a maximum of seven (7) overload credits per semester. Full-time faculty members shall be paid their then current academic hourly rate for time spent teaching overload courses pursuant to this Article 15, Section 10.

b. Adjunct instructors will be scheduled for less than 10 credits per semester.

c. Instructors in this category will not perform committee work or hold office hours. They will be primarily used to assist full-time instructors in supervising work site activities and ensuring safety, providing supplemental classroom instruction, and providing instruction in the full-time instructor's absence. They may also be used to teach additional courses when full-time instructors are not available or unable to teach a particular course either during the regular school day, in the evening or during summer school.

d. Adjunct Instructors will be paid for each hour of instruction an hourly rate as calculated from the current year's applicable Instructional Tenured Pay Schedule based on complete years of experience and educational background or \$26 per hour, whichever is greater.

e. Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 25, Section 3, instructors in this category will not accrue seniority, will not be entitled to any rights to full-time positions and will not be entitled to any benefits.

f. Adjunct instructors may be furloughed whenever management determines that the need no longer exists for any or all positions or for fiscal reasons; and incumbents will be furloughed before any full-time instructors.

Section 11. a. Overload payment will be made for the following:

- (1) Assigned student instructional contact or credit hours in excess of those outlined in Article 5, Section 2a. and b.
- (2) For academic and vocational faculty hired prior to January 1, 1991, assigned student instructional contact hours prior to 8:00 a.m. or beyond 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday.
- (3) For academic and vocational faculty hired on or after January 1, 1991, assigned student instructional contact hours prior to 7:00 a.m. or beyond 10:00 p.m. Monday through Thursday and beyond 4:00 p.m. Friday.
- (4) Assigned student instructional contact hours on Saturday or Sunday.

b. When overload is offered, first consideration shall be given to the members of this unit who have volunteered and who have the qualifications and experience to do the work planned. In the event sufficient qualified and experienced volunteers are not obtained, adjunct faculty may be employed. Overload assignments will be posted for 10 working days.

c. Overload payment for faculty members will be made at the faculty member's regular hourly rate of pay or \$40.00 per contact hour whichever is greater.

d. There will be no pyramiding of overload pay (An instructor will not be eligible for payment for preparation in excess of three if that instructor is receiving overload pay for the same discrete course title and number).

Section 12. All employees will be required to sign up for direct deposit of paychecks.

ARTICLE 16 EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES

<u>Section 1.</u> Effective the first full pay period of the 2012-2013 school year, salaries for extracurricular activities shall be paid in accordance with Appendix E.

Effective the first full pay period of the 2013-2014 school year, the salaries for extracurricular activities shall be paid in accordance with Appendix F.

Effective the first full pay period of the 2014-2015 school year, the salaries for the extracurricular activities shall be paid in accordance with Appendix G.

<u>Section 2.</u> Extracurricular activities shall be established at the sole discretion of the Employer for periods of time the Employer deems necessary. In addition, the selection of employees to direct such activities will be determined by the Employer with the incumbent having no guarantee of continued assignment in a particular activity.

ARTICLE 17

DISCHARGE, DEMOTION, SUSPENSION AND DISCIPLINE

<u>Section 1.</u> The Employer shall not demote, suspend, discharge, or take any disciplinary action against an employee without just cause. The Association shall be notified by the Employer of any demotion, suspension, discharge or any other disciplinary action.

Employee appeals concerning demotions, suspensions, discharges or any other disciplinary action, shall be processed in accordance with the Grievance and Arbitration procedures as outlined in Article 18.

<u>Section 2.</u> Any action instituted under Section 1 of this Article shall be implemented within a reasonable period of time after the event giving rise to such disciplinary action or knowledge thereof.

ARTICLE 18 GRIEVANCES AND ARBITRATION

<u>Section 1.</u> Where an employee has the right to process a grievance through either the procedure provided herein or through the Americans with Disabilities Act grievance procedure and files an appeal through the ADA, either the contract grievance procedure shall cease, if the employee has submitted a contract grievance, or the employee shall not be entitled to institute proceedings under the contract grievance procedure. If the appeal to the ADA grievance procedure is withdrawn by the employee or not accepted by the ADA grievance committee within fifteen (15) calendar days of the date of the occurrence of the action giving rise to the grievance, the processing of a contract grievance filed within the time limits set forth in Section 2, Step 1 shall be permitted.

1

<u>Section 2.</u> Any grievance or dispute which may arise during the term of this Agreement concerning the application, meaning or interpretation of the Agreement shall be processed in the following manner:

STEP 1. The employee, either alone or accompanied by the Association representative or the Association through its representative, where entitled, shall present the grievance in writing to the Office of the Academic Vice-President within fifteen (15) calendar days of the date of the occurrence giving rise to the dispute or when the employee knew or by reasonable diligence should have known of the occurrence. The Academic Vice-President or his designee will respond in writing within fifteen (15) calendar days of receipt of the Step 1 grievance.

STEP 2. If the grievance remains unresolved after Step 1, the employee may submit a written request for a meeting on the grievance to the Office of the President within fifteen (15) calendar days of the date on which he or she receives the Step 1 grievance response, which meeting shall be held within thirty (30) calendar days. The President or his designee shall provide the employee with a written response to the grievance within fifteen (15) calendar days of the date of the meeting.

STEP 3. If the grievance remains unresolved after Step 2, within fifteen (15) calendar days after the President or his designee gives his answer, the bargaining representative may appeal the grievance by requesting, in writing, that the Pennsylvania State Bureau of Mediation submit a list of arbitrators (who shall all be members of the National Academy of Arbitrators) to the College and the Union. The parties shall reply with their preferred selections in accordance with the rules of the Pennsylvania State Bureau of Mediation.

The cost of the arbitration and the arbitrator's fee shall be borne equally by the parties. The arbitrator shall not have jurisdiction to add to, modify, vary, change or remove any terms of this agreement. A decision by the arbitrator shall be final and binding on both parties, except where the decision would require an enactment of legislation, in which case it shall be binding only if such legislation is enacted.

All of the time periods in the Article are mandatory and may only be extended by prior mutual written agreement of the parties.

If an employee does not advance a grievance from one step to the next within the time limits contained in this Article, the grievance shall be deemed resolved in favor of the Employer.

If the Employer fails to respond to a grievance during any step of the process, the grievance shall be deemed denied, and the employee may proceed to the next step in the grievance arbitration. If the Employer fails to answer a grievance in the time provided, the time for an employee to advance a grievance to the next step in the process shall commence on the first calendar day after the final date on which the Employer was required to respond to the grievance.

<u>Section 3.</u> All of the time limits contained in this Article may be extended by mutual agreement. The granting of any extension at any step shall not be deemed to establish a precedent. An employee shall be permitted to have a representative of the Association present at each step of the grievance procedure up to and including Step 2; subject however, to Section 606, Article VI of the Public Employe Relations Act.

Upon request by an employee or Association representative, a Step 1 grievance meeting will be postponed or rescheduled, if necessary, if an Association representative is temporarily unavailable to the employee. Where this occurs, the time limits for response to the grievance will be suspended during the postponement period.

The Association shall furnish the Employer with the names and work locations of grievance representatives and shall notify the Employer of any changes. The parties hereto agree that the number of stewards selected by the Association shall be a reasonable number and is a proper subject of negotiations between the parties.

An aggrieved employee and Association representatives, if employees of the Employer, shall, subject to management's need to maintain efficient operations, be granted reasonable time during working hours, if required, to process Step 1 grievances in accordance with this Article without loss of pay or leave time except as follows:

Association representatives who are employees of the Commonwealth shall be granted personal leave or leave without pay to process or investigate grievances at work sites other than their own. Such leave shall be granted at the written request of the Association representative, subject to management's need to maintain efficient operations. Except for emergencies, requests for such leave must be submitted five (5) working days in advance.

Section 4. Tenured Teachers

Tenured teachers have the right to pursue procedures for challenging dismissals (discharges) either through the grievance and arbitration procedure contained in this Article or the procedures established by the Public School Code of 1949. In the event that a tenured teacher decides to proceed with the School Code procedures for the challenging of a dismissal, all grievance proceedings provided for in this Article shall cease as they pertain to that dismissal. However, the processing of other alleged contractual violations shall go forward.

Non-Tenured Teachers

Non-tenured teachers may elect to process a. dismissal appeal through this contract grievance procedure, however, such dismissal appeals are not subject to the arbitration (Step 3) provisions of this Article.

Year-End Grievance

In the event a grievance is filed at such time that 'it cannot be processed by the procedures outlined above by the end of the academic year, the parties shall, by mutual agreement, either hasten the grievance procedure by shortening the time periods between the procedural steps or continue the grievance procedure beyond the academic year to conclusion and decision.

ARTICLE 19 TRAVEL EXPENSES

<u>Section 1.</u> Travel expenses shall be paid in accordance with the Commonwealths existing Travel Expense Regulations. The mileage allowance shall be the General Services Administration rate. If the General Services Administration of the Federal Government increases or decreases the mileage allowance for employees under its jurisdiction, the mileage allowance for employees under this Agreement will be increased or decreased on the effective date of the General Services Administration change. In the event the General Services Administration changes its present policy of paying a flat automobile mileage allowance, the parties agree to negotiate concerning changes to the mileage allowance under this Section.

<u>Section 2.</u> The Employer agrees to provide the employee representative with a copy of any amendment to the Travel Expense Regulations which is made during the term of this Agreement. The failure of the employee representative to receive a copy of the aforementioned amendment shall not be an issue subject to the grievance procedure established in this collective bargaining agreement.

ARTICLE 20 VACANCIES AND TRANSFERS

<u>Section 1.</u> The Employer agrees to post any vacancies that are to be filled at least 15 calendar days prior to the filling of such vacancies unless an emergency requires a lesser period of time. The selection of personnel to fill any vacancies shall remain a College right and prerogative.

<u>Section 2.</u> For informational purposes, the Employer agrees to post extracurricular activity vacancies that are to be filled.

<u>Section 3.</u> During the period that school is not scheduled, the Employer agrees to mail, along with an employee's paycheck, a copy of the postings referred to in Sections 1 and 2.

1

i

<u>Section 4.</u> Whenever the Employer deems it necessary to fill a permanent faculty vacancy, such vacancy will be filled by the employment of a qualified professional person.

Section 5. An arbitrator will be prohibited from issuing a monetary award under this Section.

ARTICLE 21 PERSONNEL FILES

An employee shall have access to his/her official personnel file, excluding preemployment information, during the regular office hours provided that there shall be no undue interference with the normal routine of the office. Under no circumstances shall the official personnel file be removed from the office by the employee, and his/her access to the file shall be only in the presence of someone in authority in the office. An employee shall be entitled to have a representative of the Association accompany him/her during such review. An employee shall have the right to make such additions or responses to the material contained in his/her personnel file as he/she shall deem necessary, but he/she shall have no right to remove material from the file.

ARTICLE 22 PEACE AND STABILITY

<u>Section 1.</u> It is understood that there shall be no strike, as that term is defined under the Public Employe Relations Act, during the life of this Agreement, nor shall any officer, representative or official of the Association authorize, assist or encourage any such strike during the life of this Agreement.

<u>Section 2.</u> Should a strike occur not authorized by the Association, the Association, within 24 hours following the request of the College , shall:

- a. Publicly disavow such action by the employees.
- b. Advise the College in writing that such employee action has not been authorized or sanctioned by the Association.
- c. Post notices on all bulletin boards advising employees that it disapproves of such action and instruct them to return to work immediately.

<u>Section 3.</u> The College reserves the right to discipline, suspend, demote, or discharge any employee or employees who violate the provisions of Section 1 of this Article.

<u>Section 4.</u> The College will not engage in any lockout during the life of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 23 GENERAL PROVISIONS

ł

;

<u>Section 1.</u> Both the Employer and the Association agree not to discriminate against any employee on the basis of race, religious creed, color, sex, age, national origin, union membership, sexual preference, AIDS or HIV status, or political affiliation,

<u>Section 2.</u> The Employer agrees to designate to the Association space on certain bulletin boards in faculty lounges and other mutually agreed upon areas. The Association shall limit such postings to announcement of meetings, election of officers of the Association and any other material related to Association business. The Association may send mail related to Association business to members at appropriate facilities to which mail is delivered.

<u>Section 3.</u> No Association member or representative shall solicit members, engage in organizational work, or participate in other Association activities during any faculty member's active working hours on the Employer's premises except as provided for in the handling of grievances.

Association members or representatives may be permitted to use suitable facilities and equipment on the Employer's premises to conduct Association business during non-work hours upon obtaining permission from the Employer's designated representative. Any additional costs involved in such use must be paid for by the Association.

Association representatives shall be permitted to investigate and discuss grievances during working hours on the Employer's premises if notification is given to the Employer's designated representative. If the Association representative is an employee of the Employer, he/she shall request from his/her immediate supervisor reasonable time off from his/her regular duties to handle such grievances. The Employer will provide a reasonable number of employees with time off, if required, to attend negotiating meetings.

<u>Section 4.</u> The Employer shall provide any device, apparel or equipment necessary to protect employees from injury in accordance with the practice now prevailing. Where special tools are required for accomplishing work assignments, the Employer shall be responsible for supplying the same.

<u>Section 5.</u> Ratings, when done, shall be completed by supervisors who are familiar with the work performance of the employee. This shall in no way affect review procedures.

<u>Section 6</u>. Employee benefits and working conditions now existing and not in conflict with the Agreement shall remain in effect; subject, however, to the right of the Employer to change these benefits or working conditions in the exercise of its management rights reserved to it under Article 1 of this Agreement.

<u>Section 7.</u> The Employer shall make available to each employee a copy of all rules and regulations governing their professional conduct.

<u>Section 8.</u> Faculty meetings scheduled and conducted after the established faculty work day at the institution of employment are mandatory for faculty attendance up to a maximum of two per semester, if needed. Such meetings shall be of one hour duration and shall commence at the end of the faculty work day.

<u>Section 9.</u> In the event a student damages or destroys items of clothing or personal property which are worn by an employee and which are appropriate for the performance of such employee's work, the Employer shall reimburse the employee for the value of such clothing or personal property. The Condition of the clothing or personal property immediately prior to such damages shall be taken into account in determining its value. The incident giving rise to such claims must be verified and not be due to the employee's own negligence. The employee shall take prompt action in submitting claims to the Employer and upon receipt of same, the Employer shall take prompt and timely action in the disposition of employee claims for damaged clothing or personal property.

<u>Section 10.</u> The Employer may contract out bargaining unit work provided it does not result in the furlough of employees.

<u>Section 11.</u> The College and the Association agree that they will form a committee to review the Commonwealth policies referenced in Articles 7, 8, 10, 13 and 19 for the purpose of tailoring the existing Commonwealth policies to create policies that are specific to the College and the Association.

The Employer and the Association acknowledge the above represents the results of negotiations conducted in accordance with the Public Employe Relations Act and constitutes the full and complete understanding regarding the issues of contracting out and bargaining unit work.

ARTICLE 24 MEET AND DISCUSS COMMITTEES

Committees composed of representatives of the Association and the Employer are to be established to resolve problems dealing with the implementation of this Agreement and to discuss other problems of mutual concern that may arise.

ARTICLE 25 HEALTH BENEFITS

Section 1. Pennsylvania Employees Benefit Trust Fund

{L0483677.2}

a. A jointly administered, multi-union, Health and Welfare Fund has been established under the provisions of an Agreement and Declaration of Trust executed by and between Council 13, American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, and the Employer. This jointly administered Fund is known as the Pennsylvania Employees Benefit Trust Fund (hereinafter the "Fund" or PEBTF). The Fund shall conform to all existing and future Federal and Commonwealth statutes applicable to and controlling such Health and Welfare Fund. Said Agreement and Declaration of Trust shall provide for equal representation on the Board of Trustees appointed by the unions and the Employer. In addition, the Agreement and Declaration of Trust will allow the Fund to provide benefits to management level and retired employees, as well as employees represented by other unions and other Employers in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

b. The Board of Trustees of the Fund shall determine in their discretion and within the terms of this Agreement and the Agreement and Declaration of Trust the extent and level of medical plan benefits, supplemental benefits and other benefits to be extended by the Fund.

c. The Employer shall contribute to the Fund the amounts indicated below on behalf of each permanent full-time employee eligible for benefits and covered by this Agreement:

July 2011 – June 2012	\$375 biweekly per employee
July 2012 – June 2013	\$390 biweekly per employee
July 2013 - June 2014	\$425 biweekly per employee
July 2014 – June 2015	\$455 biweekly per employee

The contributions for permanent part-time employees, who are eligible for benefits and expected to be in an active pay status at least 50% of the time every pay period, will be 50% of the above referenced rates.

ł

d. The Fund shall maintain a reserve sufficient to pay on a cash basis the three next succeeding months of projected claims and expenses. Reserve is calculated as the ending fund balance, meaning the net amount of funds on hand as of the close of any given month. Fund revenues are to be adjusted to reflect the relevant cash amounts that should have been or are to be received or collected by the Fund under the agreement. Fund expenses are to be adjusted for any expense which should have been paid for the period. At each bimonthly meeting of the Board of Trustees, the Fund's actuary will present their financial projection to the Finance Committee including a report that will show the projected reserve level at the end of the succeeding 24 months, or through the end of the current agreement if this latter period is less than 24 months. The report will concisely state the assumptions and factors used in making these projections.

The report will be available to all trustees of the Fund. If the average amount of the projected reserve for any future quarter (e.g. July-September) is less than a three month reserve as defined above, the actions below will be triggered:

1. The first day of the quarter during which the average reserve would be less than three months will be considered the "target date" for additional funding;

2. At least six months prior to the target date, the Fund's actuary will review the projection and confirm that a funding adjustment is needed and the amount of such adjustment. If the need for a funding adjustment occurs in the first nine months, this subparagraph shall not apply;

3. Should the Commonwealth not dispute the finding by the Fund's actuary that an adjustment is necessary, the Commonwealth will implement the funding adjustment at least 10 calendar days prior to the target date.

4. If either the Chairman of the Board, Secretary of the Board, any four management or any four union Trustees of the Board dispute the findings of Fund's actuary, the Chairman and the Secretary of the Board of Trustees will select a neutral actuary within five business days to resolve the dispute and will forward their respective positions and any supporting documentation to the neutral actuary within five business days of such selection. The neutral actuary may communicate and ask questions of the Fund's actuary provided, however, if such communications occurs, the Finance Committee will have access to the discussions.

5. The neutral actuary shall render a decision within 30 calendar days of the receipt of said positions/documentation, which decision will be final and binding on the parties and must be implemented within 10 business days of its receipt by the parties.

6. The adjustment must be sufficiently large so as to restore the size of the reserve to a minimum of three months within 30 days following the target date.

7. Once the reserve exceeds the three month equivalent, the contribution rate shall be reduced to the amount provided under this Section unless the parties agree that a new rate is necessary to maintain a three month reserve.

8. It is understood and agreed to by the parties that the process outlined above is designed to ensure adequate funding for the PEBTF and not intended to place the financial status of the Fund in jeopardy.

e. The Employer shall make aggregate payments of Employer contributions together with an itemized statement to the Fund within one month from the end of the month in which the contributions were collected.

f. All benefits extended by the Fund must be designed to be excludable from the "regular rate" definition of the Fair Labor Standards Act, unless hereinafter required by federal law to be included.

g. No dispute over eligibility for benefits or over a claim for any benefits extended by the Fund shall be subject to the grievance procedure established in any collective bargaining agreement, except as otherwise specifically provided within this Article. h. It is expressly agreed and understood that the Employer does not accept, nor is the Employer to be hereby charged with any responsibility in any manner connected with the determination of liability to any employee claiming any of the benefits extended by the Fund. It is expressly agreed that the Employer's liability, in any and every event, with respect to benefits extended by the Fund shall be limited to the contributions indicated under paragraphs c. and d. above.

<u>Section 2.</u> The provisions of Sections 3 through 7 shall be modified to the extent the medical plan benefits, supplemental benefits and other benefits as determined and extended by the Fund and/or the Retired Employees Health Program are modified for current and/or future employees and annuitants as provided for in Section 1 (employees) and/or Section 6 (annuitants) of this Article, respectively.

<u>Section 3.</u> The Fund shall continue to provide each permanent full-time active employee medical plan benefits, supplemental benefits and other benefits as determined and extended by the Fund. In addition it shall provide dependency coverage where the dependents of the employee qualify. The Fund shall continue to provide permanent part-time employees who are expected to be in active pay status at least 50% of the time every pay period medical plan benefits, supplemental benefits and other benefits as determined and extended by the Fund. In addition, it shall provide 50% dependency coverage where the dependents of the employee qualify. Such employees shall contribute an amount determined by the Fund's trustees toward the cost of coverage. Enrollment and continued coverage in Fund benefits is further subject to the following conditions:

a. Subject to the provisions of Section 3.b., employees will contribute a percentage of their biweekly gross base salary toward the cost of coverage as provided below:

July 2011 – June 2012	3.0%
July 2012 – June 2013	3.0%
July 2013 – June 2014	3.0%
July 2014 – June 2015	5.0%

Employee contributions shall be effective the first full pay period in July of the periods specified above. Biweekly gross base salary as used throughout this Article excludes premium or supplemental payments such as overtime, shift differentials, higher class pay, etc.

b. An employee will be eligible for an Employee Contribution Waiver if the employee and his/her qualifying dependents, as determined by the Trustees, participate in the Get Healthy Program as established from time-to-time by the Fund. In accordance with Section 1.b., the Fund shall be solely responsible for establishing all requirements and conditions of the Get Healthy Program, including rules and policies for the requirements for qualifying for the Employee Contribution Waiver and for making determinations regarding whether an employee and dependents have fulfilled the conditions for such Waiver.

The Employee Contribution Waiver will consist of a waiver of a portion of the employee's required contribution to the cost of health care as a percentage of biweekly gross base salary as follows:

:	Waiver <u>Amount</u>	Employee contribution with Waiver	Employee contribution <u>without Waiver</u>
July 2011 – June 2012	1.5%	1.5%	3.0%
July 2012 – June 2013	1.5%	1.5%	3.0%
July 2013 – June 2014	1.5%	1.5%	3.0%
July 2014 – June 2015	3.0%	2.0%	5.0%

1

:

Employee Contribution Waivers shall be effective the first full pay period in July of the periods specified above.

c. The parties agreed to an evaluation process with respect to the reserve levels of the Fund to determine if an employee contribution is necessary. Under this process, if the Fund's actuary certifies that a three month reserve of projected claims and expenses has been achieved and will be maintained for at least six months, the Trustees will evaluate whether employee cost sharing for employees hired before August 1, 2003, can be reduced or eliminated, provided that at no time shall any such reduction or elimination of cost sharing result in the reserve being reduced below the three months of total projected claims and expenses. Should the Trustees, after evaluating the employee cost sharing, decide that contributions by employees hired before August 1, 2003 will be reduced or eliminated, the reserve will be reviewed on a six month basis by the Fund's actuary. If the actuary certifies that the amount of the reserve has dropped below the three month level, such contributions will resume immediately at the levels established in this Agreement, without any action on the part of the parties or the PEBTF Board of Trustees. This Subsection shall be read and administered in a manner consistent with Section 1.d. of this Article.

d. (1) For the first six (6) months of employment, the employee will be offered single coverage in the least costly medical plan offered and available in his/her area, with no supplemental benefits. The employee may opt to purchase medical coverage for the employee's qualifying dependents in the same medical plan as the employee, and/or may opt to purchase a more costly plan in the area by paying the difference in cost between the least costly and the more costly plan, in addition to the employee contribution required under Section 3.a.

(2) After completing six (6) months of employment, the employee and his/her qualifying dependents will be eligible for coverage under the Fund's supplemental benefits, and the employee will be permitted to cover his/her qualifying dependents under the least costly medical plan at no additional cost. If a more costly medical plan is selected, the employee will be required to pay the cost difference between the least costly and more costly plan, in addition to the employee contribution required under Section 3.a.

(3) Nothing herein shall be construed to limit the authority of the Board of Trustees to modify or adopt these or other eligibility rules.

e. Only employees who elect to enroll for PEBTF coverage, including those who enroll only for supplemental benefits, are subject to the employee contributions in this Article. An employee who is only enrolled as a spouse of another PEBTF covered employee is not subject to any required employee contributions. ł

f. Employee contributions under this Article will be paid to the Fund on a biweekly basis as soon as is practicable using the Employer's standard methods for transferring money. The parties intend that these contributions will be submitted in a more accelerated manner than the Employer contributions. Any employee contributions made pursuant to this Article will be made on a pre-tax basis.

<u>Section 4</u> a. Permanent employees who are granted parental leave without pay (Article 10), sick leave without pay (Article 14), or family care leave without pay (Article 38) may continue to receive benefits as determined and extended by the Fund for up to six months. Permanent employees who are granted injury leave (paid and unpaid) may continue to receive benefits as determined and extended by the Fund for up to 12 months or, if only paid leave is used, beyond 12 months until the paid leave is exhausted.

b. Permanent employees who are granted leave without pay during the summer and who are expected to return to active service at the beginning of the following school year may continue to receive benefits as determined and extended by the Fund throughout the summer.

c. The Employer shall continue to make full contributions to the Fund for permanent full-time employees and 50% contributions for permanent part-time employees for the period of time for which those employees are entitled to benefits under 5.a. or b.

d. Permanent employees who are placed on disciplinary suspension without pay for longer than one full pay period or who are granted leave without pay under conditions other than those specified in 5.a. or b. or for periods of time which exceed those specified in 5.a. or b. will be permitted to continue coverage on a direct pay basis at a rate to be determined by the Fund but no greater than the COBRA rate.

e. The continuation of benefits under this Section is subject to the employee's payment of any required employee contribution under Section 3.

Section 5. Spousal Eligibility

a. For employees hired on or after August 1, 2003: If the spouse of an employee is covered by any PEBTF health care plan, and he/she is eligible for coverage under another employer's plan(s), the spouse shall be required to enroll in each such plan, which shall be the spouse's primary coverage, as a condition of the spouse's eligibility for coverage by the PEBTF plan(s), without regard to whether the spouse's plan requires cost sharing or to whether the spouse's employer offers an incentive to the spouse not to enroll.

{L0483677.2}

b. For employees hired before August 1, 2003: Effective October 1, 2003, if the spouse of an employee covered by any PEBTF health plan also is eligible for coverage under another employer's plan(s), the spouse shall be required to enroll in each such plan, provided that the plan in question does not require an employee contribution by the spouse or the spouse's employer does not offer an incentive to the spouse not to enroll. Once covered by another employer's plan, that plan will be the spouse's primary coverage, and the PEBTF plan will be secondary.

c. Nothing herein shall be construed to limit the authority of the Board of Trustees to modify or adopt these or other spousal eligibility rules.

<u>Section 6.</u> a. The Employer shall allow each individual who was eligible as an active employee under the Fund's health benefits plan to elect coverage upon retirement under the Retired Employees Health Program (hereinafter REHP). In addition, dependency coverage shall be allowed where the dependents of the annuitant qualify under such Program.

b. Employees who retire on or after July 1, 2007, and who elect REHP coverage shall be eligible for the medical and prescription benefits in effect for active employees, provided that the Employer will modify the REHP plan of benefits from time-to-time to conform to the medical and prescription benefits in effect for the active employees. Annuitants who are eligible for Medicare will participate in Medicare supplemental medical plans, and those annuitants who are eligible to enroll in Medicare Part B will not receive benefits through the REHP for benefits which are provided by Medicare Part B. It is understood that the REHP plan of benefits may be amended or modified by the Employer from time-to-time.

ł

c. Employees who retire on or after July 1, 2007, and elect REHP coverage shall be required to contribute to the cost of coverage. The annual retiree contribution rate shall be a percentage of the employee's final annual gross salary at the time of retirement from State service equal to the active employee contribution rate in effect on the date of retirement and will be payable monthly at the rate of one-twelfth of the annual retiree contribution rate.

Effective January 1, 2012, the annual retiree contribution rate during the term of this agreement for employees who retire on or after July 1, 2011 shall be three percent (3%) of the employee's final average salary at the time of retirement, as determined by the methodology utilized by the State Employees' Retirement System to calculate pension benefits, and will be payable monthly at the rate of one-twelfth of the annual retiree contribution rate. Effective January 1, 2012, the methodology utilized by the State Employees' Retirement System to calculate pension benefits will also be applied to determine the annual retiree contribution rate for employees who retired on or after July 1, 2007 through June 30, 2011 in those situations where said methodology results in a lower retiree contribution rate than results from the use of final gross annual salary; in situations where use of final gross annual salary yields a lower contribution rate for such former employees, it shall continue to be used. Further, effective January 1, 2012, the annual retiree contribution rate for all present and future Medicare eligible retirees who have a contribution rate of three percent (3%) will be reduced to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the appropriate base (final gross annual salary or final average salary) when a retiree becomes eligible for Medicare coverage, and will be payable monthly at the rate of one-twelfth of the annual retiree contribution rate.

1

-

d. The REHP is developed and administered in a cost effective and beneficial manner by the Fund, subject only to the prior approval of the Office of Administration and in accordance with the terms and conditions of the REHP Participation Agreement between the Employer and the Fund.

e. The Employer shall continue to pay the cost of coverage, subject to the required retiree contribution rates, for annuitants who retire under (1), (2), (3), (4) or (5) below and who have elected REHP coverage:

- (1) Retirement at or after superannuation age with at least 15 years of credited service (20 years of credited service if retired on or after July 1, 2008) in the State and/or Public School Retirement Systems, except that:
 - (a) an employee who leaves State employment prior to superannuation age and subsequently retires at or after superannuation age must have 25 years of credited service in the State and/or Public School Retirement Systems,
 - (b) an employee who is furloughed prior to superannuation age and subsequently retires at or after superannuation age during the recall period must have 15 or more years of credited service (20 or more years of credited service if retired on or after July 1, 2008) in the State and/or Public School Retirement Systems,
 - (c) an employee who leaves State employment prior to superannuation age and is subsequently rehired and then retires at or after superannuation age must have 15 or more years of credited service (20 or more years of credited service if retired on or after July 1, 2008) in the State and/or Public School Retirement Systems with at least three years of credited service from the most recent date of reemployment. However, if the departure from State employment was due to furlough and the employee returns during the recall period, this three year requirement will not apply. If the employee had qualified, other than through disability retirement, for Employer paid coverage in the REHP prior to the most recent rehire period, this three year requirement will not apply,
 - (d) an employee who leaves State employment subsequent to superannuation age and is subsequently rehired and then retires must have 15 or more years of credited service (20 or more years of credited service if retired on or after July 1, 2008) in the State and/or Public School Retirement Systems with at least three years of credited service from the most recent date of reemployment. However, if the departure from State employment was due to furlough and the employee returns during the recall period, this three year requirement will not apply. If the employee had qualified, other than through disability retirement, for Employer paid coverage in the Retired

Employees Health Program prior to the most recent rehire period, this three year requirement will not apply.

For purposes of this Subsection, superannuation under TIAA-CREF shall be 60 years of age.

:

.....

- (2) Disability retirement, which requires at least five years of credited service in the State and/or Public School Retirement Systems, except that, if an employee had previously qualified based on an approved disability retirement, then returns and retires under a normal or early retirement, he or she must retire at or after superannuation age with 15 or more years of credited service (20 or more years of credited service if retired on or after July 1, 2008) in the State and/or Public School Retirement Systems or 25 years of credited service in the State and/or Public School Retirement Systems (For purposes of this Subsection, retirement under TIAA-CREF with at least five years of service as a State employee should be considered as disability retirement if the retiree is granted fully state-paid Retired Employees Health Program (REHP) coverage using the procedure established in Appendix J),
- (3) Other retirement, with at least 25 years of credited service in the State and/or Public School Retirement Systems except that an employee who leaves State employment, is subsequently rehired and retires must have at least 25 years of credited service in the State and/or Public School Retirement Systems with at least three years of credited service from the most recent date of reemployment. However, if the departure from State employment was due to furlough and the employee returns during the recall period, this three year requirement will not apply. If the employee had qualified, other than through disability retirement, for Employer paid coverage in the REHP, prior to the most recent rehire period, this three year requirement will not apply.
- (4) All employees who had at least 15 years of credited service as of June 30, 2008, or who had 13 years of credited service and were within one year of superannuation age as of June 30, 2008, whether it had been purchased as of that date or was eligible to be purchased as of that date, shall be eligible to elect REHP coverage upon reaching superannuation age with 15 years of credited service rather than 20. The three year rehire rule will not apply to such employees.
- (5) For purposes of eligibility for REHP coverage under this Section, credited service earned on or after July 1, 2007, will be limited to service as a Commonwealth employee which otherwise counts as credited service under the State and/or Public School Retirement, TIAA-CREF or other approved retirement systems' rules in effect from time to time. Employees hired on or after July 1, 2007 who have earned credited service under the State and/or Public School Retirement, TIAA-CREF or other approved retirement, TIAA-CREF or other approved retirement, TIAA-CREF or other approved retirement systems' rules with another employer will not have that service counted for purposes of eligibility for REHP coverage, unless they were employed by the Commonwealth prior to July 1, 2007. If it is

determined by the State and/or Public School Retirement Systems that a Commonwealth employee is eligible for additional credited service for military service, such credited service will be included in the determination of eligibility for REHP coverage. The phrase "Commonwealth employee" shall be limited to service earned through an employing agency eligible to participate in the Commonwealth's Life Insurance Program.

<u>Section 7.</u> When an employee dies as a result of a work-related accident, the Fund shall continue to provide medical plan benefits and supplemental benefits, as determined and extended by the Fund, to the spouse and eligible dependents of the employee until the spouse remarries or becomes eligible for coverage under another Employer's health plan. Annual certification of non-coverage will be required.

The medical plan benefits and supplemental benefits will be converted to the REHP at the time when the employee would have reached age 60.

<u>Section 8.</u> The parties will evaluate the health plans offered under the Fund, and take action as necessary, in order to ensure that a tax and/or penalty is not assessed against the Commonwealth pursuant to the Affordable Health Care Act as a result of the impact upon employees of any such plans.

ARTICLE 26 LIFE INSURANCE

<u>Section 1.</u> The Employer shall continue to assume the entire cost of the insurance coverage for eligible employees as set forth in the currently existing life insurance plan as modified by Section 2. The amount of insurance is based on the employee's annual pay rate in effect on the preceding January 1, rounded to the nearest \$1,000, but not to exceed \$40,000. The amount will be reduced to 65% on the date the insured individual reaches age 70, and the amount will be reduced to 50% on the date the insured individual reaches age 75.

<u>Section 2.</u> a. Permanent employees who are granted sick leave without pay, parental leave without pay, or family care leave without pay will continue to receive 100% State-paid coverage under the current Group Life Insurance Plan for up to six months. Permanent employees who are on sick, parental, or family care leave without pay for longer than six months may remain in the program for an additional six month period by paying the entire premium. Permanent employees who are granted injury leave (paid and unpaid) will continue to receive 100% State-paid coverage under the current life insurance plan for up to twelve (12) months or, if only paid leave is used, beyond twelve (12) months until the paid leave is exhausted.

b. Permanent employees who are granted leave without pay during the summer and who are expected to return to active service at the beginning of the following academic year will continue to receive 100% State-paid coverage under the current Group Life Insurance Plan throughout the summer.

c. Employees who are granted leave without pay for reasons other than those specified in a. above or for longer than just the summer months as specified in b. above, may remain in the program for up to one year by paying the entire premium.

<u>Section 3.</u> The Employer shall continue to provide each employee who is covered under the currently existing life insurance plan with fully paid accidental death benefits for work-related accidental deaths. The amount of coverage will be \$40,000 unless the surviving spouse or minor children are entitled to benefits under Act 101 of 1976.

ARTICLE 27 WORK RELATED INJURIES

Section 1. An employee who sustains a work-related injury during the term of this Agreement, as a result of which the employee is disabled, if so determined by a decision issued under the operation of the Workers' Compensation Program, shall be entitled to use accumulated sick or personal leave or injury leave without pay. While using accumulated leave, the employee will be paid a supplement to workers' compensation of full pay reduced by an amount that yields a net pay, including workers' compensation and social security disability benefits, that is equal to the employee's net pay immediately prior to the injury. Net pay prior to injury is defined as gross base pay minus federal, state, and local withholding, unemployment compensation tax, and social security and retirement contributions. One full day of accumulated leave will be charged for each day the supplement is paid. Accumulated leave and injury leave without pay may be used for an aggregate of 12 months or for the duration of the disability, whichever is the lesser. except that, if only accumulated leave is used, it may be used beyond 12 months until exhausted or until the disability ceases, whichever occurs sooner. In no case, however, will the aggregate of 12 months extend beyond three years from the date the injury occurred. If no leave is available under this Section, the provisions of Section 10 may apply.

.....

1

i

The employee election to use or not use accumulated leave under this Section cannot be changed more than once.

<u>Section 2.</u> An employee who works a reduced number of hours (part-time) due to partial disability may use leave in accordance with Section 1. Pay for accumulated leave used will be calculated in accordance with Section 1, based on the net amount of lost earnings.

<u>Section 3.</u> Retirement credited service for the period of time that the employee is using leave under this Article, shall be determined in accordance with the State/Public School Employees' Retirement Code.

<u>Section 4.</u> At the expiration of the leave under Section 1, if an employee continues to receive workers' compensation, the employee will be terminated in accordance with the Public School Code of 1949.

<u>Section 5.</u> An employee is required to refund to the Employer the amount of any overpayment. In no case shall an employee be entitled to full pay and workers' compensation

{L0483677.2}

and/or social security for the same period. The Employer shall recover any amount in excess of the paid supplement to workers' compensation as described in Section 1. Failure to apply for or report social security or other applicable disability benefits to the Employer will result in the termination of leave under Section 1.

<u>Section 6.</u> State-paid coverage for life insurance, hospital and medical insurance and supplemental benefits as provided in Articles 25 and 26, will continue for the period of time that the employee is on leave under Sections 1 and 10.

<u>Section 7.</u> The compensation for disability retirement arising out of work-related injuries shall be in accordance with applicable state law. It is understood that this Section is not applicable to retirement under TIAA-CREF.

<u>Section 8.</u> An employee who sustains a work-related injury, during the period of this Agreement, if so determined by a decision issued under the operation of the Workers' Compensation Program, may use sick or personal leave for the purpose of continued medical treatment of the work-related injury in accordance with Articles 6 and 12. If no paid leave is available, an employee may use leave without pay. Each absence shall not exceed the minimum amount of time necessary to obtain the medical treatment. Employees shall make reasonable efforts to schedule medical appointments during non-work hours or at times that will minimize absence from work. Verification of the length of the medical appointment may be required. This Section is not applicable to any absence for which workers' compensation is payable. When workers' compensation is payable, the provisions of Section 1 shall apply.

<u>Section 9.</u> This Article shall not be applicable to employees whose injuries are within the scope of either Act 193 of 1935, P.L. 477, as amended, or Act 632 of 1959, P.L. 1718, as amended. If an employee retires under TIAA-CREF, benefits under this Article shall cease.

<u>Section 10.</u> An employee who is disabled due to a recurrence of a work-related injury after three years from the date the injury occurred, or before three years if the leave entitlement in Section 1 has been depleted, shall be entitled to use accumulated leave and injury leave without pay while disabled for a period of up to 12 weeks. To be eligible to use injury leave without pay, the employee must have been at work at least 90 days within the previous 12 months. The 12 week period will be reduced by any other leave used within the previous 12 months that was designated as leave under the provisions of the Family and Medical Leave Act. If only accumulated leave is used, it may be used beyond 12 weeks until exhausted or until the disability ceases, whichever occurs sooner. While using accumulated leave, the leave will be charged and paid in accordance with Section 1.

<u>Section 11.</u> It is understood by both parties that the provisions of this Article are consistent with the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, USC Section, 2601 et seq. and that leave granted in accordance with Sections 1 and 10 shall be designated as leave under the provisions of the Act.

ARTICLE 28 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION

Employees shall be eligible for unemployment compensation benefits as provided by law.

ARTICLE 29 CREDIT UNION

<u>Section 1.</u> The Employer agrees to make payroll deductions available to employees who wish to participate in any one of the credit unions duly chartered under State or Federal statutes and approved by the Employer.

÷

<u>Section 2.</u> The Employer shall remit the deductions of employees together with an itemized statement to the applicable credit union designated under Section 1 above within 30 days following the end of the calendar month in which deductions were made.

<u>Section 3.</u> a. The Employer shall establish rules, procedures and forms which it deems necessary to extend payroll deductions for credit union purposes.

b. Payroll deduction authorization forms for credit union purposes may be executed by and between the employee and an official of the credit union.

<u>Section 4.</u> The Association shall indemnify and hold the Employer harmless against any and all claims, suits, orders, or judgments brought or issued against the Employer as a result of the action taken or nor taken by the Employer under the provisions of this Article.

ARTICLE 30 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

<u>Section 1.</u> In the event that any provisions of this Agreement are found to be inconsistent with existing statutes or ordinances, the provisions of such statutes or ordinances shall prevail, and if any provision herein is found to be invalid and unenforceable by a court or other authority having jurisdiction, then such provision shall be considered void, but all other valid provisions shall remain in full force and effect. The parties, however, shall at the request of either, negotiate on the subject matter involved in any invalidated provision.

<u>Section 2.</u> The Commonwealth and the Association acknowledge that this Agreement represents the results of collective negotiations between said parties conducted under and in accordance with the provisions of the Public Employee Relations Act and constitutes the entire agreement between the parties for the duration of the life of said Agreement; each party waiving the right to bargain collectively with each other with reference to any other subject matter, issue, or thing whether specifically covered herein or wholly omitted herefrom and irrespective of whether said subject was mentioned or discussed during the negotiations preceding the execution of this Agreement.

<u>Section 3.</u> In the event that any provision of this Agreement requires legislative action to

{L0483677.2}

become effective, including but not limited to the amendment of existing statutes, the adoption of new legislation, or the granting of appropriations, it shall become effective only if such legislative action is taken. The parties, however, mutually agree to make recommendations to the Legislature which may be necessary to give force and effect to the provisions of this Agreement.

<u>Section 4.</u> In the event the Public Employe Relations Act is amended during the term of this Agreement, the parties agree to negotiate concerning the amendments to determine whether or not this Agreement should be amended to incorporate changes permitted by the amendments to the Act. It is clearly understood that if this Agreement is reopened for negotiations for this purpose, the provisions of Article 22, Peace and Stability, will remain in full force and effect.

ARTICLE 31 SENIORITY

<u>Section 1.</u> For the purpose of this Article the term "seniority" means length of unbroken service in positions covered by this Agreement. However, the time that an employee is on approved leave or on suspension will not affect their seniority standing, or the right to accrue seniority. Seniority only accrues at the institution where the employee is employed.

<u>Section 2.</u> The term "unbroken service" as used in Section 1 of this Article shall include length of continuous service in a position covered by this Agreement. The following shall constitute a break in continuous service: absence without leave for 5 consecutive days, resignation, discharge for just cause and retirement. If an employee is returned after such break in service, the employee shall be entitled to credit for seniority purposes the time accrued up to the break in service, but shall not be entitled to any credit for the time represented by such break.

÷

:

<u>Section 3.</u> When the Employer determines that a reduction in force is necessary and the reasons meet the cause for suspension provision of 24 P.S. § 11-1124 of the Pennsylvania Public School Code of 1949, the professional employee suspended will be the least senior employee provided the remaining employees have the necessary certification to teach the remaining subjects or perform the remaining duties. The employee shall be suspended in accordance with 24 P.S. § 11-1125.1 of the School Code and the institution shall realign its professional employees so as to insure that more senior employees are provided with the opportunity to fill positions for which they are certificated and which are filled by less senior employees.

<u>Section 4.</u> Recall lists will be established for suspended employees. Professional employees will be reinstated in the inverse order of their suspension. A suspended employee may refuse an offer of recall and be passed over; however, they will remain on the recall list in their original position.

<u>Section 5.</u> Suspended employees must annually notify in writing the governing board and the institution of their current address and their intent to accept the same or similar position when offered.

<u>Section 6.</u> No new employee will be hired while there are suspended employees available who are properly certified to fill such vacancies. Additionally, no 'contracting of bargaining unit work will occur while a "suspended" (as defined in the Public School Code) employee is available and properly certified to do the work.

ARTICLE 32 ACADEMIC FREEDOM

<u>Section 1.</u> A faculty member is entitled to full freedom in research and in the publication of the results, subject to the adequate performance of his/her other academic or administrative duties.

<u>Section 2.</u> A faculty member is entitled to freedom in the classroom in discussing his/her academic/vocational-technical discipline, but he/she should be careful not to introduce into his/her teaching controversial matter which has no relation to his/her academic/vocational-technical discipline.

<u>Section 3.</u> A faculty member is a citizen and a member of a learned profession. When he/she speaks or writes as a citizen, he/she should be free from school censorship or discipline, but his/her special position in the community imposes special obligations. As a person of learning, he/she should remember that the public may judge his/her profession and his/her institution. Hence, he/she should at all times be accurate, should exercise appropriate restraint, should show respect for the opinions of others, and should make every effort to indicate that he/she is not a spokesperson of the institution. Acts which interfere with the activities of the institution, acts which interfere with the freedom of movement on the campus, or acts which interfere with the freedom of all members of the academic community to pursue their rightful goals, are the antithesis of academic freedom and responsibility. So also are such acts which, in effect, deny freedom to speak, to be heard, to study, to teach, to administer and to pursue research.

<u>Section 4.</u> a. Faculty members are entitled to freedom in the selection of textbooks, audio-visual aids and other teaching aids. However, where faculty teaching the same subject have agreed on a common textbook or teaching materials those materials shall prevail. In addition, in the case of a course with more than one section that is taught by more than one faculty member, the faculty members shall use the same textbook for all the sections of the course.

b. There shall be no censorship of library materials.

c. With respect to a. and b. above, budgetary limitations may restrict the quantity of items to be purchased.

<u>Section 5.</u> The provisions of this Article shall not be construed so as to deprive the institution or its designees of its right of access to and/or possession of files, records or materials maintained by faculty members on behalf of the institution, provided, however, that grade books shall remain in the possession of the faculty member so long as he/she remains at the institution.

i

<u>Section 6.</u> Nothing in this Article shall be construed to mean the institution should purchase or provide specific books, equipment, including computers and/or computer software, that may differ from the standards already owned or licensed by the institution.

I

<u>Section 7.</u> Since certain aspects of the information obtained by a faculty member in the course of his/her work can be considered privileged, no faculty member shall be required to disclose such information unless he/she deems it to be in the best interest of his/her student or his/her profession. The institution will immediately advise the faculty member of any effort, by action of law or otherwise, to secure records or other information obtained by the faculty member. In no event shall the institution exercise any disciplinary action against a faculty member because of his/her assertion of privilege with regard to information under his/her control.

<u>Section 8.</u> Grievances arising under the provisions of this Article may be appealed through the Grievance Procedure, provided that the decision at the arbitration level shall be final and binding.

<u>Section 9.</u> Nothing in this Article shall be construed to mean that a faculty member is not required to enforce the College's student classroom attendance policy.

ARTICLE 33 TENURE

<u>Section 1.</u> Definition: Tenure shall mean the right of a Faculty member to hold his/her position and not be removed from the position except for just cause.

<u>Section 2.</u> a. For employees hired prior to August 16, 2011, there shall be a probationary period of three (3) full Academic Years at the College for each faculty member. During the probationary period, the faculty member shall be observed and evaluated in accordance with the procedures outlined in this contract. The three-year time period used for computing the probationary period must be time spent as a regular, full-time or permanent part-time faculty member.

b. The President of the College shall by October 1 send a notice to all secondyear probationary faculty members with a copy to the Vice President for Academic Affairs and the Association notifying the second-year faculty member that he/she is being considered for tenure and should submit a statement of the reasons why the faculty member believes he/she should be granted tenure to the President no later than December 31. A copy of this information shall be forwarded to the College Faculty Tenure Committee and the Vice President for Academic Affairs who shall evaluate the probationary faculty member in their third full year of probationary teaching. By May 31, the President shall either grant tenure during the probationary faculty members' third year of probationary employment or the probationary faculty members' third year of probationary employment shall be the terminal year of employment.

c. The procedure for granting tenure:

A Faculty Senate Committee of a minimum of five (5) tenured faculty members shall recommend to the President the names of all second-year probationary non-tenured faculty members from the list of candidates supplied by the President whom they consider to be qualified for tenure. The Vice President for Academic Affairs of the college shall make an independent recommendation to the President of the College on each second-year probationary, non-tenured faculty member being considered for tenure. These recommendations shall be completed no later than March 1 and contain the data upon which the recommendations are based. Each applicant for tenure shall have the right to request an appearance before the Committee and the Vice President for Academic Affairs to speak on his/her own behalf before the Committee and the Vice president for Academic Affairs submit their recommendation to the President of the College.

<u>Section 3.</u> a. For employees hired on or after to August 16, 2011, there shall be a probationary period of four (4) full Academic Years at the College for each faculty member. During the probationary period, the faculty member shall be observed and evaluated in accordance with the procedures outlined in this contract. The four-year time period used for computing the probationary period must be time spent as a regular, full-time or permanent part-time faculty member.

b. The President of the College shall by October 1 send a notice to all third-year probationary faculty members with a copy to the Vice President for Academic Affairs and the Association notifying the third-year faculty member that he/she is being considered for tenure and should submit a statement of the reasons why the faculty member believes he/she should be granted tenure to the President no later than December 31. A copy of this information shall be forwarded to the College Faculty Tenure Committee and the Vice President for Academic Affairs who shall evaluate the probationary faculty member in their fourth full year of probationary teaching. By May 31, the President shall either grant tenure during the probationary faculty members' fourth year of probationary employment or the probationary faculty members' fourth year of probationary employment or the probationary faculty members' fourth year of probationary employment of the terminal year of employment.

c. The procedure for granting tenure:

A Faculty Senate Committee of a minimum of five (5) tenured faculty members shall recommend to the President the names of all third-year probationary non-tenured faculty members from the list of candidates supplied by the President whom they consider to be qualified for tenure. The Vice President for Academic Affairs of the college shall make an independent recommendation to the President of the College on each third-year probationary, non-tenured faculty member being considered for tenure. These recommendations shall be completed no later than March 1 and contain the data upon which the recommendations are based. Each applicant for tenure shall have the right to request an appearance before the Committee and the Vice President for Academic Affairs to speak on his/her own behalf before the Committee and the Vice president for Academic Affairs submit their recommendation to the President of the College.

ţ

<u>Section 4.</u> The President shall grant tenure effective as of the beginning of the next Academic Year to those faculty members for whom he/she approve tenure.

<u>Section 5.</u> The President shall notify in writing each probationary candidate for tenure either the positive or negative decision made with respect to the granting of tenure. In the event that the President does not grant tenure to a probationary faculty member who has been recommended by the College Tenure Committee, therefore, shall be given to the Faculty Committee and the affected faculty member(s) if requested in writing.

<u>Section 7.</u> Except as provided herein, a faculty member's eligibility for consideration for tenure commences on the employee's first day of employment with the Employer. A faculty member's prior employment by, or tenure with, any other educational institution shall not be factored into the eligibility for tenure timeline outlined in this Article.

ARTICLE 34 PEER EVALUATION

Procedures for faculty evaluation by a committee of their peers shall be established at Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology as reflected in Appendix I.

ARTICLE 35 PROMOTION AND RANK

There shall be a Promotion and Rank System at Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology which is attached as Appendix K. A total of \$50,000 will be distributed to the faculty during each school years of the current Agreement in support of this program. The monies will be distributed based upon rank at the assistant professor level or higher. The Association will work in conjunction with the Promotion and Rank Committee at the beginning of the Fall semester to determine placements and distribution percentages. The Faculty will notify the Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology administration by letter before September 30th setting forth both the placements of current faculty members and the distribution percentages.

ARTICLE 36 SUMMER EMPLOYMENT

<u>Section 1.</u> a. Summer contracts may be offered at the discretion of the President or designee. When summer contracts are offered, first consideration shall be given to the members of this unit who have volunteered and who have the qualifications and experience to do the work

planned. In the event sufficient qualified and experienced volunteers are not obtained, adjunct faculty may be employed. Summer assignments will be posted for 10 working days.

b. Summer employment assignments will be made on or before May 1.

c. A summer contract shall be offered either as a firm contract or a contingency contract. If a firm contract is offered prior to May 1 and accepted by a faculty member by May 15, it shall be mutually binding. If a contingency contract is offered prior to May 1 and accepted by the faculty member by May 15, the institution may cancel the remainder of the contract at any time before the second class meeting if the number of students is insufficient to cover costs to the institution.

Section 2. Summer School Pay Rates

a. Employees in this bargaining unit who were hired prior to August 16, 2011, and who teach summer school will be paid their then-applicable academic hourly rate per contact hour.

b. Adjunct faculty who were hired prior to August 16, 2011, and teach summer school will be paid their then-applicable academic hourly rate per contact hour.

c. Employees in this bargaining unit or adjunct faculty who were hired on or after August 16, 2011, and teach summer school will be paid their applicable academic hourly rate.

ARTICLE 37 FAMILY CARE LEAVE

<u>Section 1.</u> After completing one year of service, permanent employees shall be granted, upon written request, up to six months of family care leave without pay with benefits, on a rolling twelve month year basis for the purpose of attending to the medical needs of a spouse, parent, son or daughter or other person qualifying as a dependent who has a serious health condition, as defined by the Family and Medical Leave Act, provided the employee has at least 1250 hours of work time within the twelve months preceding the commencement of the leave. In accordance with the provisions of the Family Medical Leave Act, permanent, full-time employees are deemed to meet the 1250 hours test unless the Employer can clearly demonstrate that the employee did not work 1250 hours during the previous twelve months in which case, the employee would not be eligible for FMLA leave. Leave under this Section shall be approved on an intermittent or reduced-time basis during the first twelve weeks of absence per rolling twelve month year. After twelve weeks of absence, whether taken intermittently, on a reduced-time basis, or continuously, subsequent leaves in the rolling twelve month year shall not be approved for periods less than two consecutive weeks.

The request, which shall be submitted, at least two weeks in advance if circumstances permit, must include documentation supporting the need for Family Care Leave.

One aggregate six month entitlement of leave without pay with benefits will be provided for family care leave without pay used under this Section, sick leave without pay used under Article 17, Section 5.a., and parental leave without pay used under Article 18, Section 1.a. Leave used under these Articles will be deducted from the six month entitlement and run concurrently.

After the employee has used an aggregate of six months of leave without pay with benefits under this Section, Article 17, Section 5.a., and/or Article 18, Section 1.a., the Employer is not required to grant subsequent leave without pay with benefits until such time that the employee again becomes eligible for some portion of the six month entitlement under the rolling twelve month year, provided that the employee has at least 1250 hours of work time within the twelve month period preceding commencement of the leave.

The continuation of benefits under this Section is subject to the employee's payment of any required employee contribution under Article 25, Section 3.

<u>Section 2.</u> State-paid coverage for health benefits and for life insurance as provided in Articles 25 and 26 will continue for the period of time the employee is on family care leave without pay with benefits under Section 1 of this Article.

<u>Section 3.</u> Upon request of the employee, an extension of up to an additional six months of leave without pay shall be granted provided the employee provides proof of the family member's continuing illness or disability. The extension shall be without benefits and shall be contiguous to the termination of the initial six months of leave without pay with benefits. It shall not be used on an intermittent or reduced-time basis.

<u>Section 4.</u> If eligible for paid sick leave, an employee shall be required to use all paid sick leave upon commencement of family care leave without pay. Such sick leave used will run concurrently with and reduce the six month entitlement to leave without pay with benefits. Employees shall not be required to use personal or compensatory leave upon commencement of leave without pay; however, if personal leave is used, it also will run concurrently with and reduce such entitlement.

<u>Section 5.</u> An employee shall have the right to return to the same position in the same classification held before going on family care leave, or to an equivalent position with regard to pay and skill for absences under Section 1 of this Article. After commencing the extension period under Section 3 of this Article and upon receipt of a written request to return to work, the employee shall be offered a position in the same classification for which a vacancy exists and which the agency intends to fill. If such a position is not available, the employee shall be offered, during the remainder of the six-month period, any position in the same classification, or a position previously held, within the same geographical/organizational limitation, for which a vacancy exists and which the agency intends to fill. If the employee refuses an offer of a position in the same classification, in the same classification, in the same classification in the same classification in the same classification of a position in the same classification if the employee refuses an offer of a position in the same classification in a position previously held, the employee will be offered a position in the same classification if there is a vacancy in that classification during the remainder of the six-month period provided the agency intends to fill the position.

<u>Section 6.</u> For the purpose of this Article, parent shall be defined as the biological parent of the employee or an individual who stood in loco parentis to an employee when the employee was a son or daughter.

For the purpose of this Article, son or daughter shall be defined as a biological, adopted, or foster child, a step-child, a legal ward, or a child of a person standing in loco parentis who is

- (a) under 18 years of age; or
- (b) 18 years of age or older and incapable of self-care because of a mental or physical disability.

<u>Section 7.</u> It is understood by both parties that the provisions of this Article are consistent with the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, 29 USC Sections 2601 et seq.

<u>Section 8.</u> This Article becomes effective January 1, 2009. Absences occurring before January 1, 2009 shall be covered by the provisions of Article 38, Family Care Leave, of the Agreement between the Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology and the PSEA, NEA, Local Association at Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology August 16, 2004 through August 15, 2007.

ARTICLE 38 TERM OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall be effective August 16, 2011, unless otherwise provided herein, and shall continue in full force and effect up to and including August 15, 2015, unless extended by mutual agreement.

Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology

William E. Griscom, Ed.D, President

UN 1001

Kelly Powell Logan, Secretary Governor's Office of Administration

Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology, Pennsylvania State Education Association Local Association at Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology

Nathan J. Greenawa PSEA

President

Local Association at Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology

{L0483677.2}

Appendix A Eveloyee PAY Schedile - Effective avoist 11, 2011

айруу өснерген ергертүе айсы	1
S CHEOULI EO	

							SCHEOULIF ED								
	PAY STEP	EDUCATION LEVEL A	Equation Level B	EDUCATION LEVEL O	ESUCÁTION LEVELO	EDUCATION LEVEL E	ECUCATION LEVEL #	EDUCATION LEVEL Q	EQUEATION LEVEL H	EDUCATION LEVEL!	LEVEL J	EDUCATION LEVEL K	ECHICATION LEVEL L	EDUOATION LEVELM	•
*	Hourly Regalar Baneekay Distrighted Baneekay 12 Bonth Ranual ^{ens} Agadebed Adnual ^{ens}	21,08 1596,40 43,551	1,765.17 1,485.15 49,775 38,614	1,772J2 1,503.60 45,233 39,060	1,783.55 1,515.04 46,696 39,381	1,563,33 1,530,12 47,151 39,763	1,837.77 1,555.04 47,920 40,431	1,867.18 1,579.92 48,695 41,078	1,932.47 -1,838.15 \$0,399 42,514	2,000.18 1,692,46 52,165 44,004	2,070.15 1,751.68 53,930 46,543	2,103.34 1,782.77 54,933 46,339	2,122.16 1,195.63 63,348 49,697	2,143.36 1,813.52 55,553 47,154	
ß	kcurly Astalaa saacexly Issincuited Bancekly 12 Maath Ankualym Academis Angualym	21.54 1723.29 44,941	1,834.18 1,552.00 47,535 48,332	1,852,82 1,567,50 48,314 40,755	1,871,61 1,683,15 48,786 41,162	1,889.73 1,599.00 49,254 41,574	1,823.48 1,625.00 60,686 42,250	1,951,21 1,851,84 50,885 42,927	2,019.44 1,768.77 32,667 44,428	2,890.12 1,768.51 54,818 45,893	2,163,29 1,830,48 59,419 47,592	2,201.16 1,252.54 57,406 43,426	2,217,83 1,876,44 57,836 48,783	2,233,84 1,895,23 58,415 43,271	
a	HOURLY NERLAA BAWEEKLY DISTREMTED BAWEEKLY ACADESES ARKURL ACADESES ARKURL	22,60 1750,00 45,901	1,916.73 1,621,85 49,945 42,168	1,935.90 1,638.08 50,488 42,590	1,835.22 1,654,42 50,962 43,815	1,974.60 1,671.00 81,603 43,448	2,005.90 1,693.18 52,340 44,152	2,038.47 1,725.27 53,176 44,857	2,118,34 1,785,65 85,038 46,427	2,184.21 1,848.19 86,864 48,653	2,260.85 1,812.88 58,958 49,735	2,309.21 1,948.35 59,989 50,605	2,317.AB 1,940.56 60,443 50,985	2,340,62 1,980,34 61,643 51,484	
Ð	Hourly Regil ar brazekiye Distributed Brazekuye 12 North Arrialeee Academic Anrualeee	22.43 1738.43 46,952	2,002.93 1,694.85 52,233 44,066	2,023,02 1,711,77 \$2,769 44,509	2,843.24 1,728.88 53,288 44,851	2,063.60 1,746.12 51,819 45,393	2,697.17 1,774.54 54,694 46,138	2,139,75 1,802,86 55,470 45,877	2,205,29 1,869,90 57,514 48,518	2,282,50 1,931,25 63,528 59,215	2,382.38 1,898.92 61,610 61,972	2,403.73 2,033.92 62,689 62,882	2,421.70 2,049,12 53,154 53,277	2,445.99 2,068.85 53,781 53,511	
E	Hourly Regilar Biveekly* Distristred Etherday* 12 Month Annuals* Acadedid Alexida	23,02 1841,43 48,823	2,093.07 1,771.03 54,587 45,043	2,114.84 1,788,81 55,134 48,509	2,135.17 1,800,83 55,685 45,974	2,158,51 1,824,73 66,242 47,443	2,121.57 1,854.42 57,156 41,215	2,228,62 1,384,68 58,070 43,955	2,104.54 1,155,00 66,102 50,700	2,385.25 2,81#.31 62,207 52,476	2,489.62 2,089,85 66,382 84,310	2,511.94 2,125,46 65,510 86,262	2,539,78 2,141,42 65,002 85,677	2,555.87 2,162,73 64,660 ,59,231	
,	Hourly Regialay Rian Rankary Shitayautas Rankary Academis Annulal' Academis Annulal'	23,52 1561,63 49,072	2,187.33 1,850.81 67,045 48,121	2,209,18 1,889,31 57,615 43,692	2,231,29 1,858,69 58,192 49,085	2,253.63 1,906.65 68,772 49,575	2,290.18 1,937.85 59,728 59,364	2,325,84 1,968,85 60,684 51,190	2,408.24 2,037,78 62,807 52,981	2,492.52 2,109,64 85,005 64,835	2,679.77 2,182,88 67,280 \$6,785	2,824.92 2,225,09 88,453 57,748	2,244.58 2,237,59 68,970 59,185	2,071.08 2,268.12 59,661 58,763	
G	HOURLY REGULAR BINEDIGLY DISTRIETED BINEDICLY* 12 MORTH ANNUAL*** ACADEMIC ANNUAL**	24.04 1923-23 50,157	2,285.58 1,934.04 59,611 50,285	2,308.52 1,853,35 60,208 50,787	2,331,63 1,972,95 50,819 51,237	2,354.93 1,992,69 41,418 51,819	2,153.25 2,625.68 62,416 62,652	2,431,51 2,657,42 53,414 63,493	2,518.58 2,529,42 88,633 85,385	2,604.85 2,203,92 87,929 87,302	2,685,88 2,241,12 70,308 89,309	2,743.02 2,321,00 71,538 60,348	2,783.60 2,538,42 72,978 80,799	2,791.27 2,361.45 72,795 81,408	
н	Hourly Regular Simeerly Distributed Bimeerly 12 Nonth Arbual*** Academic Arbual***	24.63 1967,20 51,303	2,388.58 2,021.12 EZ,294 52,549	2,412,45 2,041,31 82,917 53,074	2,438.87 2,061,73 63,649 63,605	2,480.95 2,082,35 84,182 84,141	2,569.93 2,116,15 85,224 85,920	2,540.91 2,150.00 56,257 55,939	2,823.83 2,225.23 68,635 67,858	2,721 & B 2,303,15 70,937 59,842	2,417.15 2,383.73 73,471 61,977	2,866.49 2,428,50 74,788 63,863	2,887,88 2,443,85 78,318 63,535	2,916,84 2,465,03 76,071 84,170	
ł	Nourly Regular Bharrialy Distributed Blacerly A Month Arriality Agadryg Aryall	25.12 2009.60 52,410	2,406.05 2,112,04 85,097 54,913	2,821.03 2,133.18 65,748 65,463	2,646,19 2,154,44 69,405 66,019	2,571,67 2,176,04 67,063 59,577	2,613.48 2,211.33 63,169 57,495	2,885.23 2,248,73 69,248 58,415	2,748.25 2,225,46 71,474 60,482	2,844.19 2,404.81 74,182 62,577	2,843,99 2,491,08 76,778 64,768	2,4\$5.48 2,634.85 78,122 \$5,901	3,017,94 2,953,65 78,708 69,395	3,043,16 2,579,23 79,435 87,460	
L	Holfly Regilar Parency Distributed Barency Alanth Arnual III Academd Annual III	28.71 2656.80 83,641	2,693,49 2,207,12 68,027 67,385	2,634,49 2,229,19 £8,787 57,959	2,560,84 2,281,46 69,295 58,539	2,637,42 2,273,66 70,083 59,121	2,731.12 2,310,96 71,225 63,985	2,774.96 2,347,92 72,357 61,046	2,871,47 2,430,04 74,838 - 63,181	2,972,41 2,615,12 77,523 65,393	3,075,44 2,603,15 83,234 67,682	3,130.28 2,645,59 81,538 86,885	3,163,78 2,668,68 82,251 69,383	3,185.26 2,695.23 83,072 70,076	
к	Hourly Regular Bareskin ^o Dis Treuted Bracenin ^{os} 12 Month Abaultum Academic Annual ¹⁰⁰	26.27 2165.50 54,810	2,725.76 2,308.42 71,528 59,567	2,753.03 2,329,50 71,783 69,587	2,748,53 2,352,77 72,515 51,172	2,893,44 2,176,15 73,243 61,785	2,854,92 2,414,92 74,433 62,785	2,898,65 2,453,68 76,623 53,783	3,031,14 2,533,42 78,270 63,825	3,165.17 2,628.31 81,609 86,335	3,214.87 2,720.27 \$3,844 70,727	3,171,16 2,767,98 86,312 71,955	3,293,67 2,785,95 85,951 72,505	3,328.52 2,814.54 86,810 73,230	
د	Hourly Regular Blaedoly* Ob Tranted Baseboly* I Morth Adrial*** Academic Annual***	28.88 2141.50 88,941	2,848.42 2,410,19 74,287 62,865	2,876,95 2,434,35 75,031 63,293	2,905,65 2,435,63 76,780 53,925	2,934.74 2,483,23 76,838 64,864	2,182.42 2,523,58 77,782 63,513	3,030.68 2,653.92 73,024 66,662	3,138.13 2,653,85 81,793 68,935	3,245.89 2,745.54 84,663 71,410	3,359,82 2,842,85 87,616 73,909	3,418,32 2,892,42 89,158 76,263	3,443,64 2,914,12 19,618 75,767	3,478,19 2,943,27 90,718 76,523	
и	Hourly Regular Bineenly* 12 Honth Annual***	27.45 2195.00 57,272	*:Th ds *:Th	nbuted over 2 a Distributed i	2 biveskly pa Siveskly appl	y periodi es to instrucia		bra \$4l acade	enic year and	who receive I				mual esti werthe celend	les ya
N	Hourly Regulir Bangerly" 12 Month Ashval""	28.06 2244,50 55,544	ትት : Tha የጣኑ The Edu	Academic Ann 12 Month anna	i of a certain for a the certain of the	l instructore w multiplying the	to Annual by 2 relayed for a fu Regult Biwer ativities Specie	E acedonic yo Xiy by 25,05 at	ei alen akti iz	decived by rout		rular Elwaeldy b	ny 22 and restra	ing to the series	ल देखेंग
٥	Hourly Regulae Engenicly 12 Bouth August	23,68 2204,49 59,133													
,	HOUNLY REQUAR ENCERTY 12 NORTH ANNUAL	28.34 2347,20 61,215										*			
٩	nourly Regula Bimeerly" 12 Honth Alexial"	30.60 2405,60 62,562													
л	Hourky Redulia Baar Exly* 12 Month Annual***	30.64 2451,20 83,927													
1	Hously Regulls Bimebilt" 11 Novth Angelal""	31.32 2533.60 85,348													
T	Hourly Regull Bargory II Boath Annual	\$2.02 2551.50 66,897													

;

÷

ł

Appendix B EMPLOYEE PAY BOREOUR SEFECTIVE JULY 1, 2013

SCHEOULE ED

							schedule ed							
	PAYSTEP	Equication Leviel A	EOUCATION LEVEL B	EDUCÁTION LEVELO	ethicktion Level 0	EUGATION LEVEL 1	EDUCATION LEVEL P	EDUCATION LEVELO	EDUCATION LEVEL H	EDUCATION LEVEL	LEVEL J	EDUCATION LEVELK	LEVELL	EDUCATION LEVEL N
*	Holrly Reixal Ar Esmericy" Distributed B-Valeya.v" 12 Wohth Annual" Aoademed Annual"	21,45 1712.00 44,649	1,772.72 1,500.00 48,233	1,790,45 1,615,00 48,695	1,808.41 1,630,15 47,153	1,825,41 1,645,42 47,633	1,838.15 1,570,58 48,468	1,885,85 1,595,73 49,183	1,551.79 1,451,60 59,433	2,020,18 1,703,38 52,685	2,090,85 1,769,18 54,528	2,127.48 1,800.12 35,483	2,143.37 1,813.62 55,839	2,164.78 1,631,73 86,458
9	HOURLY REGULA SAMERAY DISTRUCTED BAYE EXLYN IS NORTH ANNUAL AGADEND ARMUAL	21.87 1745.60 45,430	39,600 1,852,52 1,687,50 48,314 49,765	39,390 1,871.05 1,533,18 48,787 41,183	39,745 1,868.72 1,553.85 49,284 41,574	40,181 1,903,63 1,615,69 49,777 41,898	40,538 1,939,66 1,641,27 50,588 42,673	41,48# 1,970.72 1,567.54 51,396 43,356	42,939 2,033,63 1,725,85 53,194 44,872	44,444 2,111.02 1,765.23 55,063 46,442	45,999 2,184.92 1,848.77 38,983 45,068	48,803 2,223,17 1,851,15 57,980 48,919	47,154 2,239.81 1,893.23 58,414 49,270	47,628 2,262.24 1,514.13 53,598 48,788
9	Bolinly Regular Biverdav* Dirtrisuted Biveraav* 12 Month Annual*** Agacesed Arnual →	22.33 1786.40 48,889	1,935,99 1,638,05 59,488 42,590	1,955,25 1,651,46 59,933 43,915	1,074.77 1,678.98 51,502 43,445	1,994.35 1,687.43 52,418 43,889	2,026.97 1,715.12 52,563 44,593	2,059.38 1,742,54 53,708 45,366	2,131.44 1,103.54 55,588 46,882	2,208.05 1,869.65 57,534 48,533	2,253.27 1,932,60 59,543 \$0,232	2,323,21 1,963.51 60,589 51,111	2,343.65 1,889,54 61,844 61,494	2,354.03 2,000,35 61,654 52,609
b	Rolaly Regizar Simedicy Istrauted Bimedicy Istrauted Bimedicy Month Ashival ¹⁴⁴	22.41 1824.60 47,591	2,023.01 1,711.77 52,760 44,509	2,043,28 1,728.92 53,288 44,952	2,063.67 1,746.19 83,821 45,401	2,584,24 1,763,58 54,357 45,853	2,118.14 1,792,27 55,241 48,509	2,152.06 1,820.96 56,126 47,345	2,227,34 1,834,65 58,089 49,001	2,306,33 1,950,65 80,123 50,717	2,385,58 2,618,92 82,226 82,492	2,427.77 2,054.27 63,416 53,411	2,445.92 2,049,82 83,780 63,810	2,470,42 2,090,38 64,429 54,348
	Kolaly Regular Bimeeigiy* Distributed Bimeeigiy** 12 Month Angual*** Agademic Angual***	23.37 1809.50 48,769	2,114.00 1,743.77 55,133 48,503	2,135.18 1,408.69 55,485 49,974	2,150.52 1,824.73 56,242 47,443	2,178.48 1,843.60 55,884 47,918	2,213,49 1,872,56 57,728 48,597	2,248,68 1,902,92 54,851 49,476	2,327.59 1,543.50 60,704 51,207	2,409.10 2,038,45 62,529 53,000	2,493.31 2,109,73 65,026 84,853	2,537,42 2,146,69 66,185 86,314	2,659.06 2,162.81 66,852 58,233	2,881,63 2,184,38 67,324 \$6,794
F	ncurly Regular Bimedian Diftributed Bimedian 12 Nonth Annual Academed Airkual	23,48 1810,40 49,823	7,209.20 1,869.31 57,619 48,602	2,231,27 1,888.60 88,192 49,018	2,253.63 1,986.83 58,774 49,579	2,276,87 1,925,92 59,360 50,074	2,343.08 1,557,23 60,328 50,828	2,360,11 1,988.54 61,291 51,702	2,432,32 2,458,12 63,435 53,511	2,517.45 2,130.15 65,853 55,384	2,695,57 2,264,73 47,353 87,323	2,851,17 2,243,43 69,143 65,326	2,071,01 2,260,08 89,653 58,762	2,697,77 2,282,73 78,358 59,351
a	Hourly Reoular Bimeenly* Catrogutes Bamerily* 12 Month Arnualy** Academic Annualy**	24.40 1952.00 60,868	2,001,54 1,953,18 80,207 80,788	2,331,61 1,972,88 50,888 61,293	2,155,61 - 1,992,69 61,419 51,819	2,378,64 2,012,62 62,032 52,328	2,417,18 2,645,31 63,640 \$3,178	2,465.53 2,078.96 64,548 54,028	2,541,78 2,153,73 55,918 55,918	2,430,70 2,225,68 68,668 57,875	2,722.82 2,303,92 71,911 69,982	2,770,43 2,344,23 72,263 80,950	2,781,24 2,761,81 72,789 81,407	2,519,18 2,368,46 73,524 \$2,522
н	Rourly Regular Beneenly ^a Detir Buted Binebia (^{na} 19 Nonth Annual ^{na} Academic Adrial ^{na}	24.96 (\$93.80 \$2,977	2,412,47 2,641,31 82,917 83,074	2,430.57 2,661,73 83,546 83,605	2,460.94 2,052.35 64,181 64,141	2,485.55 2,103,15 64,823 54,682	2,625.94 2,137,35 65,377 85,571	2,588.32 2,171,50 69,810 86,459	2,853,13 2,247,50 69,272 55,435	2,749.11 2,326.15 71,697 60,419	2,845,32 2,407,33 74,206 82,597	2,895,15 2,449,73 75,508 63,693	2,516.84 2,465.08 76,971 64,170	2,948.01 2,492.77 76,432 64,412
ł	Housey Regular Bangerly* Istr: Butes Bangerly* I Month Annual*** Academic Ashual**	25,59 2040,00 \$3,203	2,821,01 2,133,18 65,745 85,452	2,548.24 2,154.50 66,498 55,017	2,571.65 2,176,00 67,069 68,575	2,597,38 2,197,81 67,749 87,143	2,639.59 2,233,38 68,841 88,071	2,681.78 2,289.19 89,841 58,998	2,775,73 2,348,69 72,391 61,066	2,872,83 2,430,85 74,923 63,202	2,973,43 2,515,98 77,847 66,416	3,025.43 2,559.98 78,903 66,559	\$,848.12 2,478,19 79,495 67,659	3,078,64 2,683.00 89,291 67,750
J	Hourly Regular Baneerlay* Distrauted Baneerlay* 12 Maath Annual*** Agaachdd Annual***	26.10 2088,90 64,455	2,634.48 2,229,18 68,707 67,959	2,669.83 2,251.46 69,334 58,638	2,687.45 2,274.00 70,659 59,124	2,714.29 2,296,43 70,713 59,714	2,758,43 2,134,64 71,840 60,885	2,862.56 2,371.38 73,031 61,656	2,180,59 2,454,35 75,647 63,813	3,002.13 2,840.27 78,298 68,047	3,107.20 2,629,18 \$1,036 \$8,358	3,161,58 2,675,18 82,454 89,558	3,165.32 2,695.27 83,073 78,077	3,217,11 2,722,15 83,832 70,778
ĸ	Hourly Regular Boxerkly* Dia Taisuted Rayeekly* IS Boath Annual*** Agadengy Annual**	28,46 2132,50 55,623	2,753,01 2,329,48 71,788 89,556	2,780.58 2,352,77 72,517 61,172	2,844,34 2,376,27 73,242 61,763	2,838,48 2,400,12 73,978 62,403	2,882.38 2,439,68 75,177 63,416	1,928,86 2,478,12 76,379 84,431	3,031.15 2,564.81 79,052 66,685	3,137,23 2,654,53 81,819 69,018	3,247,02 2,747,48 84,682 71,434	3,303,4% 2,795,51 86,165 72,545	3,323.53 2,818.54 80,811 73,230	3,381,91 2,844,09 87,879 73,952
Ł	Hourly Regular Branchly Analysis analysis, Analysis analysis,	27.27 2181.60 86,888	2,876.80 2,434.31 75,830 63,252	2,505.72 2,458,69 76,781 63,926	2,934.74 2,453,23 76,534 64,554	2,954,69 2,503,48 77,363 55,210	0,812.24 2,548,81 78,569 86,269	3,060.38 2,585,84 78,815 67,328	3,167.49 2,683.19 82,698 69,685	3,278,55 2,774.00 85,499 72,124	1,383,12 2,871,12 88,491 74,649	3,452.56 2,921,35 80,941 76,955	3,478,38 2,943,23 90,716 76,524	3,612,17 2,972,69 81,823 77,280
พ พ	Hourly Regults Banderly Hourly	27,36 2223,30 58,127 28,48	ם איי: That דר	is rate Broen	t bireekiy par keeskiy apple ed by dividing	/ periods as to instructor the Academic	s employed for Annual by 20	r a full esade I and roundin	nic year and '	who receive th store	els Academic	Arvival estan	o beluárdzo	ver tha celendar ya
o	regual r Bareeko.y* 12 Month Annial*** Hourly	2378,40 59,424 23,11	ትት በት። የተሳ ቸው	Asadonin Arni 12 Month annus atlan jewel A(F	ial applies to al al la dorived by	i instructors em MUNICIPANO ENS	ploy ed for e ful Regissle Blueei	i academic yea dy by 26.08 an	r. This rate is a	lerived by multi		iter Blwooldy b	y 22 and round	ing to the new ork dollo
	REFUALS BINNESS.Y* 12 Month Annual****	2328.88 60,715												
P	HOURLY REGULTE REVERSEY 12 MONTH ADRUAL***	29.78 29.92.48 62,133												
Q	Houvely Regular Baneerly 12 Nonth Annual ***	10.45 2436.90 63,531												
N	Hourly Regular Encedy 12 Month Assual ¹⁹⁴⁴	31.10 2458.00 84,887												
5	Nourly Require Bimericy 13 Nonth Annualy Nourly	31.79 2543.28 68,327				·						•		
T	Holrly Regule Bareskly* 11 Horth Aurial***	32.50 2600.00 57,808												

Appendix G EMPLOYEE FAY SOLEDULE - EFFEOTIVE AUDUST 10, 2014

• • • •

į

_ . . .

SCHEEVLE ED

								SCHEEULE ED								
		FAY STEP	EDUCATION LEVEL A	EQUCATION LEVEL B	eougation Level o	Equantism Level D	EDUCATION LEVEL &	EDUIGATION LEVELF	Education Leves, o	EDUCATION LEVEL H	ESLICATION LEVEL 1	EDUCATION LEVEL J	EDUCATION LEVEL K	EQUCATION LEVELL	ECUCATION LEVEL N	
-	×	Hourly Regular Bintero, ya Castriguteg Bang Ego, ya 12 Month Aurula: Agademo Anguali	21.94 1765.29 45,778	1,786.02 1,511,23 45,578 39,292	1,863,85 1,526,35 47,045 39,683	1,821.97 1,541.65 47,517 40,083	1,849.11 1,557.00 47,538 40,482	1,970.97 1,582.38 43,771 41,142	1,839.99 1,697,69 49,452 41,800	1,965.43 1,563.84 51,284 43,261	2,635,55 1,722,19 53,851 44,777	2,195,53 1,782,48 54,934 48,344	2,143.58 1,813,62 55,439 47,154	2,159.45 1,527.23 E6,318 47,308	2,181,83 1,845,80 55,881 47,983	
	9	нооаlу Regirar Rivers, y Chitrifyted Ravers, yw 19 нонтн алаалаас Acasebo Arrijal	22,42 1793,69 48,777	1,818,41 1,579,27 43,878 41,881	1,815.08 1,598.08 49,163 41,472	1,803,83 1,611,88 49,633 41,888	1,922.94 1,627,12 50,159 42,305	1,854.21 1,653.65 59,956 42,933	1,955.50 1,659.04 51,782 43,551	2,654.93 1,738.77 53,593 45,208	2,128,85 1,789,65 55,468 44,781	2,201,31 1,892,68 57,410 43,429	2,239,84 1,885,23 68,415 49,276	2,289.81 1,909.42 88,852 48,646	2,279.21 1,928.58 59,442 50,143	;
	٩	rovaly Calify by the system Is north abauly Really by the system Really by the system Really	22.89 1501.20 47,758	1,950,42 1,650,35 50,867 42,109	1,169,92 1,565,85 51,376 43,338	1,989.53 1,683.50 51,688 43,771	2,003.51 1,760.35 52,463 44,208	2,642,17 1,728,63 53,250 44,928	2,074.61 1,755.62 54,111 45,645	2,147.43 1,817.04 36,005 47,243	2,222,69 1,888,65 57,465 49,697	2,300.39 1,946.59 69,994 59,609	2,340.83 1,980,54 81,044 51,494	2,358.20 1,895,33 61,502 51,830	2,381.74 2,015,35 62,118 62,399	
	Ď	Kolsely Regular Banferly* Ostaryted Banelaly* () North Assual*** Academic Adrual***	23.38 1879.49 48,789	2,638,18 1,724,62 53,156 44,540	2,855.57 1,741.58 53,688 45,269	2,078,15 1,759,27 54,224 45,741	2,089,87 1,776,41 54,765 46,197	2,134,63 1,805,73 85,856 48,949	2,169.20 1,834.82 55,547 47,709	2,244.05 1,898.81 88,325 49,369	2,122.62 1,865.31 £0,574 51,418	2,403,87 2,034,04 62,693 52,685	2,445,98 2,089,68 63,791 63,812	2,464.29 2,085,18 64,268 84,214	2,488,95 2,105,84 64,911 54,757	
	6	Hourly Aegular Byrenly* Detrivited Byrenly* 12 North Annual*** Academic Anrial***	23,96 1918,53 49,990	2,129,86 1,802,19 35,547 46,857	2,151.19 1,820.23 56,103 47,326	2,172.69 1,835.42 66,654 47,799	2,124,43 1,856,81 57,239 41,277	2,230,69 1,817,80 53,161 49,062	2,263.76 1,817.19 89,091 49,147	2,345.05 1,984.27 61,159 51,591	2,427,17 2,053,77 \$3,101 53,193	2,512,01 2,125,54 65,513 \$5,264	2,655.06 2,182.81 66,662 58,233	2,578.23 2,179,04 67,162 56,655	2,500.88 2,200,77 67,831 87,220	
	ť	ноцясу Лесила влигосли Датизитер влигосли 12 хонтн алкидети Асассиса акраласти	2 4,48 1958,49 61,076	2,225,77 1,883,33 58,048 48,967	2,248.00 1,902,15 58,628 49,465	2,270.50 1,921,19 59,215 49,951	2,253,14 1,940,35 59,885 50,449	2,130,43 1,971,88 60,778 51,269	2,397.74 2,693.49 81,751 52,090	2,459.68 2,073.54 63,811 53,912	2,516.33 2,146,12 68,147 55,769	2,625,11 2,321,33 63,463 87,752	2,871,08 2,259,12 59,651 58,763	2,691,04 2,277,04 79,182 59,203	2,718,00 2,289,85 76,385 59,796	
	a	Holkely Regular Bangerlan Distributed Bangerlan 17 Nonth Abrialin Academic Annualin	25,61 2900,60 52,181	2,323,83 1,954,04 60,454 51,165	2,349.10 1,987,69 61,285 81,680	2,372.87 2,007,65 61,879 52,193	2,396,38 2,027,69 62,498 82,720	2,435,31 2,060,65 63,613 <i>63,517</i>	2,474.25 2,093.52 64,528 54,434	2,560.82 2,165,85 58,789 56,338	2,659.43 2,242,65 69,123 89,369	2,743.24 2,521,19 71,544 60,351	2,791.23 2,381.81 72,783 61,407	2,812.17 2,379.54 73,341 61,868	2,840.32 2,403.35 74,076 62,487	
	H	Hourly Regilar Bayeenly Diatributed Bayeerly 12 Bonth Annual Acadeligo Annual	25,58 2646,49 53,376	2,430.58 2,050.62 63,319 53,472	2,454.84 2,077,15 64,822 54,088	2,479,49 2,097,98 64,863 54,547	2,504.20 2,118,92 65,519 55,952	2,544.88 2,153.35 65,370 85,987	2,515.57 2,187.81 67,402 56,183	2,676.85 2,264,35 69,791 58,973	2,769.73 2,243,62 72,235 60,934	2,455,65 2,423,65 74,762 63,067	2,916.86 2,458,12 76,072 84,171	2,938.72 2,485.62 76,442 64,652	2,968,11 2,511,46 77,468 65,288	
	I	Holmly Negalar Binerkly* Ostriguted Binerkly** 12 Worth Annual*** Academic Annual***	28,14 2091,20 54,519	2,539.92 2,149,13 68,241 85,878	2,695,34 2,170,65 66,904 66,437	2,590,54 2,192,35 67,572 87,801	2,616,67 2,214,27 68,245 87,871	2,869.39 2,250.37 69,357 59,567	2,781,89 2,285,23 70,455 54,442	2,788,55 2,366,31 72,934 61,524	2,894.38 2,449.88 75,485 83,878	2,935,73 2,534,85 76,128 65,398	3,048.12 2,579,19 78,493 87,689	3,070,98 2,598,54 80,091 67,662	3,101.73 2,624.54 80,893 68,238	
	J	Kourly Reolar Baneeday* Distributed Baneeday** 12 North Annual*** Acadevid Annual***	28.78 2140.00 35,811	2,654.24 2,245,68 69,223 58,383	2,680,79 2,268,35 69,815 58,977	2,707.61 2,261,04 76,614 59,567	2,734,85 2,313,92 71,320 66,162	2,775.12 2,351.68 72,479 61,141	2,823,57 2,389,19 73,639 82,119	2,822.34 2,472.73 78,215 64,281	3,024,63 2,559,31 78,883 68,542	3,130,58 2,644,88 81,643 88,971	3,163.29 2,685.23 83,072 70,076	3,209,21 2,715,50 83,686 70,683	3,241,24 2,742,58 84,532 71,307	
	к	Holphly Rediflan Bäntersys Distributed Banetalysi 12 Month Answallans Academic Angelalss	27,33 2186,40 57,021	2,373.65 2,346.96 72,337 61,921	2,891,41 2,370,42 73,961 61,431	2,829,40 2,354,12 73,791 52,247	2,837,38 2,418,12 74,836 62,871	2,494.18 2,457,35 75,741 63,892	2,959.82 2,493,69 76,952 64,814	3,053,88 2,554,04 79,645 67,185	3,180,76 2,874,90 82,433 69,537	3,271.37 2,768,48 85,317 71,870	3,128.64 2,816.64 86,811 73,230	3,183,59 2,837,65 87,462 73,779	3,387,12 2,486,04 89,338 74,517	
_	Ł	Houmly Reglalat Bareerly* Cettreuted Bareerly** 12 Month Annual*** Acadesig Abrialy**	27,98 2216,89 88,338	2,898,48 2,452,58 75,592 63,757	2,827.61 2,477,12 78,345 64,403	2,969.76 2,501,88 77,112 65,049	2,984.32 2,529,88 77,883 85,669	3,634.83 2,557,92 78,148 66,766	3,683.33 2,603.95 80,413 67,833	3,191,25 2,709.31 83,228 79,208	1,302,44 2,764,81 88,141 72,665	3,418.57 2,492.65 89,166 75,209	3,478.39 2,943.27 90,716 76,525	3,504.47 2,865.31 81,397 77,618	3,539,52 2,834,96 92,311 77,889	
	ы м	Hourly Regula Burerly Iz North Annully Hourly Regula Burerly	28,58 2284,40 59,588 29,19 2335,10	ີ (ການ ເຊິ່ງ ເຊິ່ງ		e oweekly apple weakly apple ed in divided	i penadi a 10 instructori fina Academia	s employed for	a la acader	rio year and w	for receive the	lir Acadamio.	Annual salary	distributed ov	or the caleridar	
	٥	12 SONTH AVERALI ***	60,992 29,85	The	iz Honth annue Stori Jevel A(F	i is defined by (urrigida ava 1	Reguing Elected	ly by 28,08 and	, This rate is d I recending to th	o:Yod by mility o nearest dofar	yng Va Roge i	iat Biweakly by	22 and relate	ান্ত হৈ হাঁও তথৰা লগ	bolar
		REGULE BANEFLY* 12 HONTH ANNUAL***	2368.08 62,278													
		HOURLY REGULT RAVERSON* 12 MONTH ANNUAL***	3043 2442.40 83,655						1					****		*******
	a	Hourly Regular bracescly* 12 North Annual***	3 (,2 (2498,80 65,117							N.						
	R	Horey Regule Bive Boly 12 North Addial	31,49 2451,20 88,535													
	4	Hourly Regular Kancend.y* 12 Month Annual***	32,59 2667,20 47,998													
	T	HOURLY REGULTER BASERALY* 12 WORTH ANNUAL****	33.31 2664,88 69,498													

Page 50

APPENDIX E THADGEUS STEVENS COLLEGE OF TECHNOLOCY ECTRA CLARRUCH,AR ACTIVATY FEE SCHEDULE ACADEMIC YEAR 2017-2013

.

.

.

.

. . .

Major Sports (Football, Besketball, & Wrestling)																
		-	One To Cone To	Total Base	2013-2013-2013-2013-2013-2013-2013-2013-	Two ncrements	Total Base Plus Two Incraments	2012- 2013 Base	Three T spanoments P	Total Base Plus Three Incremente		Four Increments	Total Base Plus Four Increments		-Five Increments	Total Base Plan Five Increments
Head Coach Assistant Coach	5 Increments @ \$ 200- 5 Increments @ \$ 175	5014 4678	200 175	4853	4678 4678	9 9 88	6414 5028	A578	600 525	8614 5203	8014 8014 4578	803 700	8814 5374 5374	Allouin 6014 4576	1000 875	7014 6563
Intermediate Sports:					•											
Hoad Coach Assistant Coach	5 Increments @ \$ 200 ; 5 Increments @ \$ 175	3883 2856	200	2007 2007	3893 2866	8 8	4203	3893 2866	800 822	4483 3367	3693 2856	800 7,000	4 8 93 3556	3833	1000 875	4853
Minor Sports																
Hoad Coach Assistant Coach	5 Increments @ \$ 175 . 5 Increments @ \$ 150	1668 1038	51 12 12	1733	1038	360 300	1308	1558 1038	525 450	2083 7488 7488	1558 1038	700	2258	1036	875 750	2433
Director of Athletics	6 Increments @ \$ 200 ;	6014	200	6214	6014	400	B414	8014	600	8614	6014	008	6614	8014 2014	1000	7014
Athletic Trainsr	3 increments @ \$ 200	20051	200	20251	20051	40 80	20451	20061	600	20851				14 21-3-4		
Intramural Supervisor	5 Incroments @ \$ 150 [:]	2436	150	2586	2436	300	2736	2438	450	23805	2436	8	3036	5438	760	3186
lifanagers	3 Increments @ \$ 175	1545	175	1720	1545	350	1895	1545	525	2070						
Advisor	3 Increments @ \$ 150;	1106	150	1256	1106	300	1406	1108	8	1556						
DepartmentDivision Chairperson 3 increments @ \$ 175	3 Increments @ \$ 175 -	2188	175	2343	2168	350	251852	2168	525	2663				50%-		
Campus Service Specialist (Non-Instructional)									8	24.37/hour						
Tech Prep Specialist									4 8	48.01/hour						
Duel Employment									27.	27.00fhour						

٠ .

Salarios paid for exacting and exdra curricular activities will be paid over and above the statices specified in the regular salary activation. This specifi in coaching and exdra curricular activities shall not reduce the time a person is required to spend on his/her regular school position.

.

nstructional Tutor Catalog Coordinator

25,00/bour 21.12/hour

Page 51

1

:

:

|

:

1 ,

1

;

i .

:

Total Base Plos Flve Increments 7074 4802 3760 2449 1768 7014 3210
 Total Base
 2013.
 Four
 Total Base
 2013.
 Four
 Total Date
 2014.
 From
 Total Date
 Total Date</ <u>100</u> 878 750 20 1574 1048 8014 2<u>6</u>2 3060 2274 1649 6674 22 ĝ 80 1574 1048 6074 2480 5674 20652 20652 2010 2065 1567 7 2099 6 27,00thour 23.60/hour 48.48/hour Three Increments 89 XX 809 525 웛햠 ŝ 8 22 켫 ŝ 525 Total Base 2013-Plus Two 2014 Ib Increments Base Amount 6474 6075 5075 2015 B074 1117 3832 2865 20282 2460 1574 1048 1580 2190 1924 1348 6474 6474 20652 2750 71910 1417 1417 4332 Total Base 2013- Two Ta Increment 2014 Incoments 11 Increment 2014 Incoments 10 62714 Amount 400 75 48005 4725 350 75 48005 4725 350 75 3802 400 75 3802 2895 350 88 **8**8 혛 ŝ 80 300 ŝ 8 5<u>7</u>4 20262 6074 2480 1560 1117 2190 224122 20452 2810 2810 1735 1735 1257 22855 1749 5 1198 5 2013- Cna 11 2014 Increment F Base Increment I Base 1 I Amount 200 6074 200 4725 175 욄볃 175 150 8 ĝ ន្ត 135 먌 125 3832 2685 2<u>5</u>2 202.62 288 1580 1117 **8**674 2180 5 Increments @ \$ 200 5 Increments @ \$ 175 5 increments @ \$ 200 5 increments @ \$ 175 3 increments 🕮 \$ 150 5 Increments @ \$ 175 5 Increments @ \$ 150 3 increments @ \$ 200 6 Increments @ \$ 150 3 Increments @ \$ 175 5 Increments @ \$ 200 3 Increments (2, \$ 175 nent/Division Chairperson Major Sports Football, Basketball, & Wrestling) mural Supervisor ermediate Sports: ector of Athletics sch Prep Spectalist Non-Instructional) ual Employment Head Coach Assistant Coach lead Conch Usistant Coach sed Coech statant Coach histic Trainer tor Sports

APPENDIX F APPENDIX F TRANDELIS STEVENS COLLEGE OF TECHNOLOGY EXTRA CURRENLAR ACTIVITY FEE ECHEDULE ACADERIC YEAR 2013-2014

Salaries paid for ccaching and extra curricular activities will bo pold over and above the stabules specifies in the regidar salary schedule. Time spectric in coaching and extra curricular achiefus shall not reduce the time a person is required to spend on Nather regular ectool position.

atalog Coordinato

tructional Tutor

26.00/hour

21.33/hour

Page 52

1

Major Sports (Foctbell, Basketball, & Wrestling)																
		2014- 2015 Ir Base	Ons Tr Increment F	Total Base Plus Ona Increment	2014- 2016 Base	Two Increments	Total Base Plus Two Increments	2014- 2015 fr Base	Thrac Increments	Total Base Plus Three Increments		Four Increments	Total Base Plus Four Increments	2014- 2015 Base	Five Increments	Total Base Plus Five Incroments
Head Coach Azsistant Coach	5 Increments (\$ \$ 200 5 Increments (\$ \$ 175	Amount 6120 4760	200 175	5020 4635	AT190	990 320	6520 5110	Amourn 6120 4780	800 822	5720 5285 5285	5120 4750	800 700	5820 B	Amourk 6120 4780	1000 875	7120
intermediate Sports;																
Haad Coach Assistant Coach	5 increments @ \$ 200 S increments @ \$ 175	3961 2907	200 173	4191 3082 3082	7980 7880	8 8	4361	3981 2907	600 325	4561	3961	000	4761	3961 2907	1000 875	4961 3782
Minor Sports							/392									
Head Coach Assistant Coach	5 Increments @ \$ 176 5 Increments @ \$ 150	1586 1056	175 160	1709 1206	1686 1056	350 300	1936 1358	1586 1056	626 460	2115 1508	1586 1056	700 600	2286 1656	1056	875 760	2481
Director of Athietics	5 Incraments @ \$ 200	5120	200	6320	6120	400	2220 2220	6120	600	6720	6120	800	07680	8120	1001	7120
Athletic Trainer	3 Incrementa 🕲 \$ 200	20404	200	20604	20404	0 4	20804	20404	800	21004						
intramural Supervisor	6 Increments @ \$ 150	2479	150	2623	2479	300	2779	2479	450	2020	2478	83	3079	2479	05/	3229
illenagers	3 Increments @ \$ 175	1572	175	17-47	1672	360	1922	1572	525	2007						
Advisor	3 Increments @ \$ 150	1125	150	1275	1125	300	1425	1125	45 0	1575	÷					
Department/Division Charperson	3 Increments @ \$ 175	2208	175	2384	2208	350	2556	2206	625	2731			200 200			٦
Campus Service Specialist (Non-Instructional)									8	227.78/hour						
Tech Prep Specialist									¥	49.85/haur						
Dual Employment	•••••								ล	27.00/hour						
Instructional Tutor	- ••								ë)	25.00/hour						
Catalog Coordinator	1 ***								Ņ	21.48/hour						
	·															

APPENDIX COLLEGE OF TECHNOLOGY FUNDELS STEVERS OF COLLEGE OF TECHNOLOGY FORCULAR ACTIVITY FEE SCHEDULE ACADEMIC YEAR STHATS .

Salaries paid for cosciling and extra curricular activities will be paid over and above the embried opeorition in the mograe relary activation. Time spont in coaching and extra curricular activities that not reduce the time a porson is required to spond on higher regulate activities operation. Page 53

.

ι.

......

ĩ

••••••

APPENDIX H EDUCATIONAL LEVELS

i

i,

	Academic Track Education Level	Vocational Track Education Level
Education Level 1	N/A	Vocational Instructors with up to 29 credits
Education Level 2	N/A	Vocational Instructors with 30-44 credits
Education Level 3	N/A	Vocational Instructors with 45-59 credits
Education Level 4	Bachelor's Degree	Vocational Instructors with 60-89credits
Education Level 5	Bachelor's Degree +24 credits	For TSCT instructors with Bachelor's Degree
Education Level 6	Master's Degree or Equivalent or Bachelor's Degree with PA Certification in Deaf Education	TSCT Instructors with Bachelor's Degree + 24 credits
Education Level 7	Master's Degree or Equivalent +15 credits or Master's Degree with PA Certification in Deaf Education	TSCT Instructors with Master's Degree
Education Level 8	Master's Degree or Equivalent +30 credits or Master's Degree +15 credits with PA Certification in Deaf Education	TSCT Instructors with Master's Degree + 15 credits
Education Level 9	Master's Degree or Equivalent +45 credits or Master's Degree +30 credits with PA. Certification in Deaf Education	TSCT Instructors with Master's Degree + 30 credits
-Education . Level 10	-Master's Degree or Equivalent +60 credits or Master's Degree +45 credits with PA Certification in Deaf Education	-TSCT Instructors with Master's Degree + 45 - credits
Education Level 11	N/A	For TSCT Instructors with Master's Degree + 60 credits
Education Level 12	Ph.D/Ed.D or Ph.D/Ed.D with PA Certification in Deaf Education	For TSCT Instructors with Ph.D./Ed.D.

{L0501825.1}

ł

·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

Page 54

APPENDIX I

Procedures for Faculty Evaluation

Tenured

- 1. All faculty will be evaluated by a committee of their peers at least once every other year.
- 2. The Division Chairs will be responsible for scheduling individual department evaluations. A team of at least two tenured faculty members selected by the Division Chair will conduct the evaluations using the attached forms. The Division Chair may act as one member of the team. The Division Chair is responsible for timely completion of evaluations under a schedule set by the college.
- 3. All applicable forms will be filled out and filed on the office of the Division Chair.
- 4. The Division Chair will review all peer evaluations within their Department.
- 5. The Division Chair will submit a comprehensive summary of the evaluation areas that need improvement through professional development activities as well as evaluation areas which meet standard. All tenured employees shall be afforded a copy of the summary document prepared by the Division Chair.
- 6. The report will be submitted to the Vice President for Academic Affairs who will in turn share the ideas for professional development with the Teaching Center Director.
- 7. The information communicated in the peer evaluation forms will not be used for the purposes of documenting a faculty member's professional performance.
- 8. This evaluation shall be in addition to any evaluation requirement mandated by the school code but shall not replace or supplant the requirements of the school code regarding evaluation.

Non-Tenured

- All non-tenured faculty will be evaluated by the Vice President for Academic Affairs using the same forms and materials as tenured. Non-tenured faculty evaluation forms will be maintained in the Academic Affairs Office. All non-tenured employees shall be afforded a copy of the summary document prepared by the Vice President for Academic Affairs.
- 2. This evaluation shall be in addition to any evaluation requirement mandated by the school code but shall not replace or supplant the requirement of the school code regarding evaluation.

Page 55

Evaluations

.

Any faculty member who participates as an evaluator in this process shall be able to exchange their office hours for all time spent actually evaluating the faculty member. The College shall establish a procedure for accounting for office hours which are used in this manner and the faculty member seeking to exchange their office hours shall be responsible for notifying the Vice President for Academic Affairs, consistent with the College's procedure.

THADDEUS STEVENS COLLEGE OF TECHNOLOGY Shop/Lab Observation

Instructor:	Course Name and Number:
Date:	Observer:

Below is a list of instructor behaviors that may occur within a given course. Use it as a guide to making observations, not as a list of required characteristics.

Mark the number at the right that best represents the observer's response. Use the comment space for additional feedback and suggestions. Use the following scale:

Not Observed 1	•		recom	Emphasis mended 2	A	ccomplished well 3	4
Observations	not observ	More emph recomm	Accom- plished well		not observ	More emph recomm	Accom- plished
1. The Laboratory/Shop activities were well planned & organized for student mastery of competencies	1.	2	3	 The instructor, adequately & clearly explained Laboratory/ Shop procedures to be 	1	2	3
2. The Laboratory/Shop time was well used	1	2	3	followed 7. The instructor			
 The Laboratory/Shop environment was reasonably controlled Reasonable and 		2	3	moved around the Laboratory/Shop to observe and supervise student	1	2	3
appropriate safety procedures were followed based on the existing facilities	1	2	3	work, answer questions & make suggestions 8. Sufficient time			
5. The instructor, herself or herself, used appropriate safety procedure (e.g. hard hat, guards, eye	1	2	3	was allowed at the end of class to clean up and clear the Laboratory/ Shop environment	M	2	3
protection)				9. The instructor exhibited appropriate appearance for professional assignment & activities	• 1	2	3

Comments on reverse side

S

.

10. Comments:

11. What were the instructor's major strengths as demonstrated to this observation?

12. What suggestions do you have for improving upon this instructor's skills?



	not observ	more emph recomm	accom- plished weli
22, Encouraged student questions	1	2 .	3
23. Encourage student discussion	1	2	3
24. Maintained student attention	1	2	3
25. Asked questions to monitor students' progress	1	2	3
26. Gave satisfactory answers to questions	1	2	3
27. responded to nonverbal cues of confusion, boredom, and curiosity	1	2	3
28. Paced lesson to allow time for note taking	1	2	3
29. Encouraged students to answer difficult questions	1	2	3
30. Asked probing questions when answer was incomplete	1	2	3
31. Restated questions when necessary	1	2	3
32. Suggested questions of limited interest be handled outside of class	ł	2	3
Comments (Instruc)			

Comments (Content ...)

	observ	emph recomm	plished well
33. Maintained adequate classroom facilities	1	2	3
 Prepared students for lesson with assigned, appropriate reading 	1	2	3
35. Supported lesson with useful classroom	1	2	3
36. Maintain eye contact with students	1	2	3
37. Provide relevant written assignments Comments:	1	2	3
Content Knowledge and	not	more	accom-
Relevance	observ	emph recomm	plished well
	observ 1	-	
Relevance 38. Presented materials worth knowing 39. Presented material appropriate to student knowledge and background	-	recomm	well
Relevance 38. Presented materials worth knowing 39. Presented material appropriate to student knowledge and	1	tecomm 2	well 3
Relevance 38. Presented materials worth knowing 39. Presented material appropriate to student knowledge and background 40. Cited authorities to support statements 41. Presented material appropriate to stated	1	recomm 2 2	well 3 3
 Relevance 38. Presented materials worth knowing 39. Presented material appropriate to student knowledge and background 40. Cited authorities to support statements 41. Presented material appropriate to stated purpose of course 42. Made distinctions between fact and 	1 1 1	recomm 2 2 2	well 3 3
 Relevance 38. Presented materials worth knowing 39. Presented material appropriate to student knowledge and background 40. Cited authorities to support statements 41. Presented material appropriate to stated purpose of course 42. Made distinctions 	1 1 1 1	recomm 2 2 2 2 2	well 3 3 3

not

more

accom-

:

45. What overall impressions do you think students left this lesson with in terms of content or style?

46. What were the instructor's major strengths as demonstrated in this observation?

47. What suggestions do you have for improving upon this instructor's skills?

APPENDIX J

Disability Retirement Determination Procedure For TIAA-CREF Participants

This procedure is adopted to implement a new qualification standard for full state-paid Retired Employees Health Program (REHP) coverage for employees who participate in the TIAA-CREF retirement system and who retire from or Commonwealth service due to a disability.

- 1. To determine if a TIAA-CREF participant qualifies for fully state-paid coverage under the REHP, all relevant evidence shall be submitted to a physician selected by the Commonwealth's Office of Administration. The physician's determination will be based on the standards used by the State Employees' Retirement System (SERS) in determining eligibility for disability retirement. The physician chosen for the review shall have experience in making the same type of determination for SERS on applications for disability retirement. The physician's determination will be issued to the employee, employing agency, and the Office of Administration.
- 2. If an employee is dissatisfied with the physician's determination under number 1, above, they may follow the existing REHP appeal procedure, as follows:

If an application for REHP coverage due to disability is denied and the applicant believes the denial is not correct, they may appeal the denial by writing to the Pennsylvania Employees Benefit Trust Fund within 0 days of the denial. The appeal must include the reasons why the applicant believes the denial to be incorrect, including any appropriate medical evidence to support the appeal. A copy of the denial must also be included. The PEBTF will review the appeal, or will notify the appellant of the procedure to follow in the appeal. Appeals are subject to final approval by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Office of Administration. Decisions rendered by the Office of Administration will be final and binding.

3. Disputes arising under this Appendix will not be subject to any grievance or arbitration provisions under any collective bargaining agreement.

APPENDIX K

Promotion and Rank at Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology

<u>Purpose</u>

The purpose of faculty rank is to recognize and encourage faculty to extend themselves beyond minimal employment levels in three areas while employed at Stevens:

- 1. Education
 - a. Knowledge in instructional area
 - b. Knowledge in teaching techniques
 - c. Knowledge that widens the professional perspective in the classroom
- 2. Service to the College
- 3. Professional Growth

Philosophy

Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology is committed to adhering to collegial practices for promotion of faculty. We recognize the need for faculty incentive to grow professionally and to provide service to the College beyond the classroom.

- The philosophy behind establishing the system of rank/promotion is to create an incentive for faculty participation at all levels-this is how faculty members rewarded for doing more than just the minimum required for their jobs.
- The idea of a faculty-driven system of rank and promotion is not mandated by anyone.

The Middle States Association of Colleges and Universities encouraged Stevens' faculty to create such a system because most post-secondary institutions have some version of one.

- Promotion is an application process. Faculty members must request the promotion in rank after reaching the minimum requirements defined by the contract.
- Promotion is by no means guaranteed. A faculty-based, PSEA membership Promotion and Rank Committee will evaluate faculty applications for promotion.
- Promotion has no affect on the established contractual salary structure.
- It is understood that not all faculty will be able to attain the rank or professor.
- It is understood that faculty are educators and will be subject to collegial education standards. Typically these standards are in the form of degrees. Since traditional academic training is not always prevalent in many of the trade areas, the College will recognize alternative documentation such as: appropriate Master of Journeyman credential or significant trade experience.

Principles

The following principles and procedures are presented to guide the faculty and administration.

- The primary responsibility for recommendation to promote is the responsibility of faculty peers serving on the PSEA Promotion and Rank Committee. The committee members shall be selected by the PSEA Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology Executive Committee from members of the Association who hold rank of Full or Associate Professor.
- 2. The review procedures and minutes in the decision making process shall be open and verifiable.
- 3. Appeal processes shall be developed and made available to all faculty members.
- 4. Review processes shall include specific criteria, limited to professionally relevant documented evidence of performance in the areas of education, professional growth, and service.
- 5. An individual application file shall be developed by the applicant and must speak to all relevant criteria for which the Promotion and Rank Committee must evaluate.
- 6. All procedures shall be subject to fully faculty and administrative review.

Criteria Required for Promotion

The following criteria are intended for guidance in determining rank for initial appointment and subsequent promotions. It is specifically recognized that programs in some technical fields require faculty whose education and/or experience will be different from the collegial degree path. In special cases, professional competency may be substituted for advanced degrees. It is also understood that in rare and special cases, a candidate may possess significant knowledge and experience without meeting the stated minimum educational criteria. The Promotion and Rank Committee may recommend promotion for a small percentage of faculty (10% or less) without meeting the minimum educational requirement, if the candidate shows clear evidence of significant accomplishments.

Promotion will be based upon three categories of qualifications:

1. Education level and years of teaching at Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology

- 2. Professional growth
- 3. Service to the College

The following represents <u>minimum</u> stipulated requirements for promotion and implies minimum educational criteria for employment.

I. Education and Years Teaching:

A. Criteria for the General Education Faculty:

Instructor: Master's Degree in the appropriate subject area

Assistant Professor:	Five (5) years as instructor at Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology and a Master's degree in the appropriate subject area and 12 graduate credits subsequent to the Masters.
Associato Professor:	Three (3) years as assistant professor at Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology and a Master's degree in the appropriate subject area and 24 graduate credits subsequent to the Masters.
Full Professor:	Three (3) years as assistant professor at Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology and a Master's degree in the appropriate subject area and 36 graduate credits subsequent to the Masters.

B. Criteria for the Technology Faculty:

Note: Appropriate industry experience/training in the specific field when referred to will be assumed to be completed <u>prior</u> to starting at Stevens for all cases except when referred to in the summer or continued work experience section. Journeyman/master level, management and supervisory positions or appropriate professional experience and training will determine "the appropriate level" as evaluated by the Promotion and Rank Committee.

Note: Summer or continued work experience time either before or after employment at Stevens may be accumulated towards 5-, 10-, or 15- year benchmarks, if:

- The experience meets the criteria of appropriate level and content for the curriculum in which the faculty member is teaching AND,
- The experience is used towards an apprenticeship or certification program.
- Summer or interrupted work experience will be converted to years towards the 5-, 10-, or 15-year benchmarks by the formula:

50 weeks of full-time appropriate employment = 2000 hours = 1 year.

- Instructor: 5 years of appropriate professional experience/training and <u>one</u> of the following:
 - A. Journeyman/Master Trade Certification
 - B. Demonstrated proficiency in the appropriate field
 - C. Appropriate degree

Assistant Professor:

Five (5) years as instructor at Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology and one of the following:

- A: Five (5) years of full-time industry experience/training in the appropriate field <u>and</u> a bachelor's degree
- B: Ten (10) years of full-time industry experience/training in the appropriate field and an associate's degree and 30 credits subsequent to the Associate's (10 of which may be discipline-related seminars based upon the following formula: 30 class hours = 1 college credit or 90 credits toward a bachelor's degree)
- C: Fifteen (15) years of full-time industry experience/training in the. appropriate field and 60 college credits (10 of which may be discipline-related seminars base upon the following formula: 30 class hours = 1 college credit

Associate Professor:

Three (3) years as assistant professor at Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology and one of the following:

- A: Five (5) years of full-time industry experience/training in the appropriate field <u>and</u> a bachelor's degree <u>and</u> 15 graduate credits subsequent to the Bachelor's.
- B. Ten (10) years of full-time industry experience/training in the appropriate field and a bachelor's degree
- C. Fifteen (15) years of full-time industry experience/training in the appropriate field and an associate's degree <u>and</u> 30 credits subsequent to the Associate's <u>or</u> 90 credits towards a bachelor's degree

Full Professor:

Three (3) years as associate professor at Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology and one of the following:

- A. Five (5) years of full-time industry experience/training in the appropriate field and a bachelor's degree and 30 graduate credits subsequent to the Bachelor's.
- B. Ten (10) years of full-time industry experience/training in the appropriate field and a bachelor's degree and 15 graduate credits subsequent to the Bachelor's.

C: Fifteen (15) years of full-time industry experience/training in the appropriate field and a bachelor's degree

II. Professional Growth:

The following criteria will be used by the Rank and Promotion Committee to evaluate professional growth. Minimums are stipulated when applicable.

- A. Teaching Effectiveness: A record of strong teaching effectiveness since the previous promotion as evidenced b the following measurable criteria:
 - 1. Positive student evaluation from three or more classes
 - 2. Peer evaluations

3. Evidence of quality in course and curriculum development, (e.g., planning and organization skills, complete syllabi, the implementation of new courses, satisfactory program evaluations, the use of teaching materials)

4. Student performances/projects, if appropriate

B. Professional Activities: A record of continuing professional growth since the previous promotion as evidenced by the following measurable criteria:

- 1. Attendance or participation at seminars, workshops, or related programs
- 2. Active memberships in professional organizations
- 3. Publications related to the appropriate field
- 4. Professional awards
- 5. Related work experiences

C. Academic Advising (where applicable)

- 1. Availability to advisees
- 2. Knowledge of graduation requirements
- 3. Student advising evaluation (to be developed)

II. <u>Service to the College:</u>

Service is described as non-compensated activities excepting Faculty Senate and PSEA positions.

A. Significant contribution at the leadership level of College committees is required. The following minimum contributions should be met. Applicable committee participation shall include all faculty and administrative committee. A minimum of 1 year of committee participation is required between each promotion.

Assistant Professor:

Four (4) years of committee participation with 1 year in an officer level a leadership role for a faculty committee

Page 67

Associate Professor:

Six (6) years of committee participation with 2 years of officer level leadership for a faculty committee

Full Professor:

Bight (8) years of committee participation with 3 years of officer level leadership for a faculty committee

- B. The following optional categories will also apply as service:
 - 1. Development of proposals that will benefit the College.
 - 2. Significant contribution to administrative and/or PSEA committee.
 - 3. Evidence of exceptional service to the College or the community.
 - 4. Financial contribution through the successful writing of grants providing funds for the College.

The Promotion and Rank Committee may consider faculty who have more than 15 years of full-time teaching experience at Stevens for promotion to any rank <u>without requiring the faculty member to meet the stated educational criteria</u>. All other criteria will apply as stated in this document. Once initial rank is granted, all future promotions will be considered by all criteria stated in this document without special consideration.

Initial placement of faculty who hold rank from other institutions:

Faculty who hold rank from other accredited colleges, have the appropriate number of years of full time college level teaching experience, and have, at their previous college, met all other educational, service, and professional growth standards stipulated for the appropriate promotion level, may be placed at that level.

Procedures

- I. Responsibility of the Candidate for Promotion The Candidate for Promotion shall:
 - A. Initiate the process by presenting a letter requesting a peer review for promotion to a specific rank to the Chairperson of the Promotion and Rank Committee, with a copy to the Vice President for Academic Affairs, no later than October 1 of the year of review.
 - B. Allow access of their professional materials to their peers on the Promotion and Rank Committee in the process of being reviewed for promotion.
 - C. Provide the following information to the committee:

- 1. Education:
 - a. Evidence documenting all post-secondary education
 - b. Evidence of number of years of teaching at Thaddeus Steven College of Technology
 - c. Evidence of number of years of full-time appropriate industry experience prior to working at Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology
- 2. Professional Growth:
 - a. Teaching: a record of strong teaching since the last promotion.
 - 1) Positive student evaluations from three or more classes
 - 2) Peer evaluations
 - Evidence of quality of course and curriculum development, (e.g., planning and organizing skills, complete syllabi, the implementation of new courses, satisfactory program evaluations, the use of teaching materials)
 - 4) Student performances/projects if appropriate
 - b. Professional: A record of continuing professional growth since the last promotion as evidence by the following measurable criteria:
 - Attendance or participation at seminar, workshops or related programs.
 - 2) Active memberships in professional organizations.
 - 3) Publications related to the appropriate field.
 - 4) Professional awards.
 - 5) Related work experiences.
 - c. Academic Advising (where applicable)
 - 1) Availability to advisees
 - 2) Knowledge of graduation requirements
 - 3) Student advising evaluation (to be developed)
- 3. Service to the College
 - a. Service is described non-compensated activities excepting Faculty Senate and PSEA positions. The candidate must provide the committee with documentation when applicable.
 - b. Significant contribution at the leadership level of College committees is required. The following minimum contribution should be met. Applicable committee participation shall include all faculty and administrative committees.

Assistant Professor:

ssor: Four (4) years of committee participation with 1 year in an officer level leadership role for a faculty committee.

Associate Professor:

Six (6) years of committee participation with 2 years of officer level leadership for a faculty committee.

Full Professor:

Eight (8) years of committee participation with 3 years of officer level leadership for a faculty committee

c. The following optional categories will also apply as service:

- 1) Development of proposals that will benefit the College
- 2) Significant contribution to administrative and/or PSEA committees
- 3) Evidence of exceptional service to the College or the community as defined by the College
- 4) Financial contribution through the successful writing of grants providing funds for the College

The Promotion and Rank Committee

- I. Responsibility of the Promotion and rank Committee The committee shall:
 - A. Be selected no later than September 1 of the year in which it is to function.
 - B. Review and recommend to the College President on all matters of individual promotion.
 - C. Consist of 5 tenured full-time faculty members who hold the rank of associate professor or professor.
 - D. Evaluate and base recommendations upon criteria outlined in this document.
 - E. Provide appropriate professional interpretation for individual promotion.
 - F. Ensure that promotion recommendations are consistent with stated criteria.
 - G. Base recommendations on secret ballot majority vote. (A tie shall be considered a negative evaluation and abstentions are not valid).
 - H. Justification of the decision shall be included in the recommendation.
 - I. Faculty members who are related by family may not vote for each other.
 - J. The chairperson of the Rank and Promotion Committee shall formally notify the Vice President for Academic Affairs of their decisions no later than December 1, and pass all information contained in the individual application file on to the Vice President for Academic Affairs.
- II. Responsibilities of the Vice President for Academic Affairs The Vice President for Academic Affairs shall:
 - A. Provide the promotion and rank committee with documentation and data as necessary.

- B. Upon receipt of the committee's recommendation and individual application file, review the material and make a separate recommendation regarding promotion and rank.
- C. Provide justification for a differing judgment if he or she does not agree with the recommendation of the Rank and Promotion Committee.
- D. Forward all recommendations to the College President, with copies to the candidate, and the chair of the committee no later than January 1.
- III. Responsibilities of the College President The College President shall:
 - A. Review the recommendations for promotions.
 - B. Inform the individual and the Promotion and Rank Committee of his or her decision no later than February 1.
 - C. If the College President disagrees with the committee, he or she shall do so with a written justification. Rank shall be officially granted at the beginning of the next academic year.

Reconsiderations, Appeals, Grievances

I. Reconsideration:

The candidate may request reconsideration of the decision of the promotion and rank committee or the Vice President for Academic Affairs by submitting a written request to the Vice President for Academic Affairs with a copy to the promotion and rank committee chairperson and the College President within five days of notification by the Vice President for Academic Affairs of the decision.

The request shall detail grounds for reconsideration and shall include all relevant evidence not previously mentioned.

The Committee and/or Vice President for Academic Affairs shall reconsider the recommendation in light of the new information, shall meet with the candidate, and shall record the confirmed or revised recommendation.

The Vice President for Academic Affairs will forward the decision to the President.

II. Appeals:

If the candidate determines that the decision by the College President should be appealed, a formal letter of appeal shall be submitted to the College President within five days of the decision by the College President. Copies must be provided to the Vice President for Academic Affairs and the Chairperson of the Promotion and Rank Committee.

III. Grievance:

An individual faculty member shall have the right to grieve, in accordance with the collective bargaining agreement, promotion decisions only as to himself/herself and then only with respect to failure by management to observe the procedures set forth or insofar as other provisions of this policy have been violated. Action or inaction by members of the bargaining units with regard to promotion and rank shall not be grievable.

Page 72